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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Powerwell
Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the first annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010.

The year 2010 has been a particular meaningful and eventful
one for the Group. The Group had during the year acquired
two famous PRC watch brands, Tianba and Harpo, and
established assembly line and distribution networks for these
brands of watches in the PRC. The Group also saw remarkable
improvement and attained record high revenue in its provision
of sourcing and procurement solutions business (the “Sourcing
Business”) as the United States of America (“USA”/“US”) and
European countries, where our major customers have notable
presence, recovered from the economic downfall brought
on by the year 2008 credit crisis. Straddling on the benefits
from both the export and domestic demands on its Sourcing
Business and design, manufacture and sale of the Tianba
and Harpo brands of watches business in the PRC (the “PRC
Watch Business”) respectively, the Company had in December
2010 announced plan for listing on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange to facilitate its development in
the two business segments. The listing has been successfully
completed on 26 January 2011.

The listing of the Company is an important strategic move for
the Group’s development. The enhanced public accountability,
information transparency and corporate governance generally
associated with a listed company would boost up customers’
confidence in the Group’s services, products and reliability
overall and be helpful in broadening our customer base
for sourcing business. The same attributes are of equal
importance for the Group’s effort in revitalizing and elevating
the brand equity of Tianba and Harpo watches that it
acquired in 2010. Heightened market awareness of our Group
and brands provides more effective and efficient market
penetration and consumer reach at locations with established
outlets and are also beneficial to the expansion of its watch
distribution network in the PRC. The funding brought in by the
listing also provides the Group with firmer financial support for
its development.
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In the longer term, the Company going public also provides REME - NRARILEMMEETER - FARQ

a foundation for developing alliance with our customers or BIS LAE B ZE 75 BP9 AE 7 [B) 33U R A0 3 19
other operators in the market whose business may synergize —EeEERBHNEPXEMEEESE  BF
with and who share the same business vision as ours, that is, R ABIR A @RS — B EERESER
to become the one-stop sourcing solution provider of choice FEREER UWERTEREERNTER D
for renowned brands worldwide and a reputable distributor of e

branded products in the PRC.

In the management discussion and analysis to follow, we will KRBT X E IR E &7 50 & 47 A A% R 1E
share more details on the performance, financial position HELZHEAEER2010FMELEL - BB
and other information of the Group in the year 2010 with N REAME R

shareholders.

Taking this special opportunity, the Board would like to EEgEHLENRE  REMNAEER -
express our sincere gratitude to all our customers, suppliers, HER « EBRH BEIERRZFRELE
business partners, staff members and shareholders for their ENZHBAROHE - BMIBEE2HUH - 2
support for the Group through all the years. We shall persist REBEBKE L —EE - HESRKRE -

with best efforts in striving for optimal development for the

Group and returns for our shareholders in the times to come.

Liu Tin Chak, Arnold FTEEBTEE
Chairman and Executive Director BXE
Hong Kong, 11 March 2011 B 20113 H11H
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

During the financial year ended 31 December 2010 (the
“Year”), the Group is principally engaged in the Sourcing
Business to our customers who are mainly brand owners
and importers in Hong Kong and foreign countries.
The products we sourced included watches, costume
jewelries, and display and packaging products. The
Group ventured into a new business segment, the PRC
Watch Business, during the Year. In this connection, the
Group acquired Shenzhen Tianhaiba Watches Company
Limited X JI X & & $# & A R 2 & (the “Tianhaiba”) at a
cash consideration of Renminbi (“RMB”) 1.0 million on
1 February 2010 to carry out this business.

Milestones

The Group went through a number of milestone events in its
development during the Year.

We acquired two classic and iconic PRC watch brands, namely
Tianba and Harpo, during the Year. These brands were among
the few and earliest consumer lifestyle products launched
in the PRC in the early 1980s following the opening up and
modernization of the PRC economy at the time. Leveraging on
our product design and development expertise, the Group is
determined to revitalize the brands and build up a distinctive
distribution network for branded goods in the PRC.

Benefiting from the economic recovery worldwide after the
crash brought on by the year 2008 credit crisis, particularly
in the US and European countries, the Group recorded a
remarkable business turnaround from 2009. Despite the
profitability of Sourcing Business lags behind following
rebound of revenue, we believe it is a natural process in
market adjustment and are confident in overcoming the
downtrend by strengthening our product offerings, cross-
selling our products and broadening our client base.

We conceived that a sound and solid corporate framework and
financial foundation are essential for the Group’s development
in both the PRC Watch Business and Sourcing Businesses
outlined earlier and the Company announced its plan to list
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange by a
prospectus issued on 29 December 2010 (the “Prospectus”).
The listing was successfully completed on 26 January 2011 by
placing of shares of the Company (the “Listing”).
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2010 2009 2008
2010 & 2009 F 2008 4
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Revenue WA 208,195 164,511 199,128
Profit before income tax B 1S AT 11,751 20,795 13,611
Basic earnings per share BREARZEF (B
(HK cents) 7.0 15.3 9.7
As at 31 December
M®12A831H
2010 2009 2008
2010 & 2009 4 2008 F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 102,419 59,504 70,508
Total liabilities wafE (72,042) (22,689) (32,820)
Net assets BEFE 30,377 36,815 37,688
Financial Review Bt %5 1o R

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$208.2 million (2009: approximately HK$164.5 million)
and recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately
HK$43.7 million or 26.6% from the year ended 31 December
2009 (the “Previous Year”). The revenue derived from the
Sourcing Business increased by approximately HK$35.8
million to approximately HK$200.3 million (2009: approximately
HK$164.5 million) while the new PRC Watch Business brought
in additional revenue of approximately HK$7.9 million for the
Year.

A
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Benefiting from economic recovery worldwide after the crash
brought on by the year 2008 credit crisis, particularly in the US
and European countries where our largest customer operates
in, revenue from watches sourcing grew by HK$34.2 million to
approximately HK$106.0 million (2009: approximately HK$71.8
million). Similarly, our costume jewelries sourcing revenue
increased by HK$3.5 million to approximately HK$23.0 million
(2009: approximately HK$19.5 million) as economy recovered.

During the Year, display and packaging products sourcing
revenue was approximately HK$71.3 million, a decrease of
approximately HK$1.9 million or 2.6% from approximately
HK$73.2 million in the Previous Year, and hinged on the
brand imaging and product promotion plan of our second
largest customer. We believe our customer devoted additional
resources in marketing their products during the harsh
economic times in the Previous Year and accordingly placed a
higher amount of display and packaging products with us.

Cost of sales and gross profit

Cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately 27.4%
from HK$125.9 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$160.4 million for the Year.

The overall gross profit of the Group increased from
approximately HK$38.6 million in 2009 to approximately
HK$47.8 million in 2010, representing an increase of
23.8%. The gross profit of the Sourcing Business rose by
approximately HK$5.2 million to approximately HK$43.8
million (2009: approximately HK$38.6 million), and gross profit
margin of the Sourcing Business was 21.9%, slightly decrease
from 23.5% of the Previous Year, primarily due to increase in
cost of raw materials resulting from the increase in purchase
prices charged by our contracted manufacturers. The PRC
Watch Business, which we started to engage during the Year,
contributed additional gross profit of approximately HK$4.0
million with gross profit margin of 51.5% to the Group.
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Selling and distribution costs for the Year increased by
approximately HK$7.2 million which was mainly as a result
of advertising expenses relating to television advertisement
and employee benefit expenses incurred for the PRC Watch
Business.

Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses for the Year were
approximately HK$27.0 million (2009: approximately HK$17.9
million), an increase of approximately HK$9.1 million from
the Previous Year, primarily due to the increase in employee
benefit expenses and listing expenses for the Listing.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately 54.2% from approximately HK$16.5 million for
the Previous Year to approximately HK$7.6 million for the Year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its daily operations from
internally generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2010, the
Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$28.3
million (2009: approximately HK$15.2 million) and did not
have any borrowing (2009: approximately HK$0.7 million). The
gearing ratio representing the ratio of total borrowings to the
total assets of the Group was 1.1% as at 31 December 2009.
Taking into account the cash reserves and recurring cash
flows from its core business, the Group’s financial position is
healthy, positioning the Group advantageously to expand its
core business and to achieve its business objectives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any charges
on its assets.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in United
States dollars(“US$”), Hong Kong dollars and RMB. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. The
Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging
policy at the moment. However, continuous monitoring on the
foreign exchange exposure is carried out by the management
and the management will consider hedging the foreign
exchange exposure if it is significant to the Group.
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Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or capital commitment.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no
significant investments held as at 31 December 2010, nor
were there material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
during the Year. There is no plan for material investments or
capital assets as at the date of this report.

Dividends

The Directors declared a final dividend of HK2.0 cents
per share for the Year payable on or about 25 May 2011,
Wednesday to shareholders whose name appear on the
register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 3 May 2011, Tuesday.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had approximately 247 (2009: 45) employees as
at the end of the Year, comprised of 50 employed in Hong
Kong and 197 in the PRC. The total staff costs for the Year,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to HK$17.7 million
(2009: HK$12.0 million). The Group’s remuneration policies are
in line with the prevailing market practice and are determined
on the basis of performance, qualification and experience of
individual employee.

We recognise the importance of a good relationship with
our employees. The remuneration payable to our employees
includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits include
training, discretionary bonus and share option scheme.

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business
Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out
in the Prospectus for the period from 21 December 2010,
being the latest practicable date as defined in the Prospectus
(“LPD”) to 30 June 2011 (the “Review Period”) with the Group’s
actual business progress up to 31 December 2010 is set out
below:
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Business objectives
for the Review
Period

Sourcing Business

Strengthen our current
Sourcing Business
capabilities

Cross-selling of our
products and
broadening our client
bases

Enhancing our level of
inventory

PRC Watch Business

Expanding our PRC
Watch Business

Enhancing brand equity
of Tianba in the PRC

acific

Actual business progress up to 31
December 2010

Regular email contacts and visits
have been arranged in due course
by the sales team to strengthen
the networking with existing
customers.

Continue to develop design on new
product series.

The Group’s websites were updated
regularly with the latest information.

We have registered to attend Hong
Kong International Jewellery Show
2011, Hong Kong Gifts & Premium
Fair, and Basel World 2011.

Evaluation on current product range
and mix is carrying out.

Evaluated the level of plastic raw
materials and watch movements.

Launched new models each month
to enrich our product range.
Evaluation on current product
range and mix is on-going.

Identified new distribution channels
to sell our “Tianba” watches in the
bulk purchase market.

Continue to monitor and evaluate
the result of television advertising
in China Central Television for the
Tianba watch business.
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Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the
Company under the placing as set out in the Prospectus (the
“Placing”) were approximately HK$17.1 million, which was
different from the estimated net proceeds of approximately
HK$24.1 million (estimated on the assumption that the placing
price would be the mid-point of the stated range as stated
in the Prospectus). We intend to adjust the use of proceeds
in the same manner and in the same proportion as shown in
the Prospectus, and approximately HK$10.0 million, HK$5.7
million and HK$1.4 million were adjusted for the corporate
expansion of the Group, the expansion of the PRC Watch
Business and general working capital respectively for the
Review Period. As stated in the Prospectus, we plan to expand
the Group’s Sourcing Business and PRC Watch Business in
the forthcoming future. As at the date of this report, we do not
anticipate any change to the plan. During the period between
the LPD and 31 December 2010, there was no usage made
out of the net proceeds from the Listing. Since the successful
Listing, the unused net proceeds have been placed as interest
bearing deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong.

Outlook

The Group was listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
on 26 January 2011. The funds raised from the Listing
have helped to strengthen a solid foundation for the future
development of the Group.

We are cognizant of the uncertainty of global economy.
The Group is optimistic and cautiously confident that the
economy will show stable growth momentum over the next
few years. The Group is committed to provide our customers
with a comprehensive sourcing and management solutions,
strengthen our product design and development capability,
continuous improvement in quality and efficiency management
our contracted manufacturers, and delivery of quality and
reliable products.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the
development of our core business. We intended to refine our
distribution network and further develop and manage our
presence of sales networks in a systematic way for the PRC
Watch Business newly expanded during the Year. We would
actively make substantial progress to enhance growth and
strive for potential business opportunities to synergize with our
existing businesses and product lines.
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Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the
year ended 31 December 2010. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to uphold high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public
accountability and corporate governance are beneficial for the
healthy growth of the Group, improving customer and supplier
confidence and safeguarding the interests of shareholders of
the Company.

The Company adopted the provisions of Appendix 15 Code on
Corporate Governance Practices of the GEM Listing Rules as
its own code (the “CG Code”) effective from 26 January 2011
(the “Listing Date”) upon the listing of the Company and had
complied with the CG Code since then and up to the date of
this report.

Directors Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules effective from
26 January 2011 upon the listing of the Company. On specific
enquiry made, all the Directors have confirmed compliance
with the Model Code since its effective date up to the date of
this report.

Board of Directors

The Board is currently composed of seven Directors, four
being executive Directors and three being independent
non-executive Directors as set out below.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tin Chak, Arnold (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter (CEO, Hong Kong Operation)
Mr. Wong Yu Man, Elias

Mr. Yang Yijun (CEO, PRC Operation)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis

Professor Lui Tai Lok

Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this Annual Report.

As identified above, the roles of Board chairman and chief
executive officer are segregated and exercised by different
individuals in accordance with the CG Code. The chairman
leads the Board in making strategic direction, setting
objectives and budget, considering major business ventures
and investments, financial reporting and upholding internal
control. The chief executive officers execute strategies set by
the Board and assume daily management of the Group and
report back to the Board on a regular basis. The functions
of the independent non-executive Directors are primarily to
bring an independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts at board meetings.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, are appointed for an initial term of three years and
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then
in office shall retire and every Director is subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
during the Year.

Board Meetings Held and Attendance

The Company adopted the CG Code effective from the Listing
Date which requires regular meeting of the Board be held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
The CG Code was not applicable for the Year and accordingly
no statistics on meetings held and attendance in respect
of the Year are provided in this report. Two meetings of the
Board were held after the Listing Date and attended by all the
members of the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 22 December 2010 with
written terms of reference effective from the Listing Date.
The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the
three independent non-executive Directors and chaired by
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of Directors and determine on behalf of the
Board specific employment terms and conditions of Directors.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in
conformity with the requirements of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting during
the Year before the Company was listed. One meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held after the Listing Date to
review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management. All members of the Remuneration Committee
attended the meeting.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) on 22 December 2010 with written terms of
reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the
CG Code. The Audit Committee is currently composed of the
three independent non-executive Directors and chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Man, Dennis, who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience as required by the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(a) monitor and ensure a proper relationship with the
Company’s auditor;

(b) review of the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual
reports and compliance with accounting standards,
the GEM Listing Rules, and legal requirements before
submission to the Board; and

(c) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the Year and recommended
approval to the Board.
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The Audit Committee did not come into effect until the Listing
Date and accordingly no meetings had been held during the
Year. One meeting of the Audit Committee was held after the
Listing Date to review the final results and financial statements
of the Group for the Year, and the 2010 Annual Report of the
Company.

Nomination of Directors

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
The Board is empowered under the Company’s Bye-Laws to
appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Qualified candidates will be
proposed to the Board for consideration and the selection
criteria are based on the assessment of their professional
qualifications, experience, and integrity.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is overall responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective internal control system
of the Group. The Group’s internal control system includes
a well defined management structure with limits of authority
which is designed for the achievement of business objectives,
to safeguard the Group’s assets against unauthorized use and
disposition, to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations, and to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company.

With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control
system, prior to listing, the Company has appointed Lau & Au
Yeung C.P.A. Limited, an independent internal control advisor,
to assist the management in assessing the Group’s internal
control systems and recommending actions to improve our
internal controls.

The Group’s external auditors, BDO Limited, contribute an
independent perspective on relevant internal controls arising
from the audit and report findings to the Audit Committee.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the Group was charged HK$970,000 for
auditing services and HK$1,500,000 for non-auditing services
by the Company’s auditor, BDO Limited.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation
of the Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair
view. The responsibilities of auditors in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the report of the auditors forming
part of this Annual Report.
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Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Liu Tin Chak, Arnold (BBX#), aged 58, is an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board appointed on 9 July
2010. He is also the compliance officer of our Company
appointed on 22 December 2010. He founded and joined
the Group in 1995 and is a director of all of our subsidiaries
except Shenzhen Tianhaiba Watches Company Limited
(“Tianhaiba”). He is responsible for finance and the overall
management of our Group. He obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from Macau University of Science
and Technology in 2002. Mr. Liu had over 16 years’ corporate
banking experience with a major international bank. He was a
director and the vice chairman of Watary International Holdings
Limited and was a director and then a general manager of a
subsidiary of United Power Investment Limited. His experience
with banking and electronic and watch manufacturing is
invaluable for the management and development of the Group.

Lam Chi Wai, Peter (#&1&), aged 51, is an executive Director
appointed on 9 July 2010. He is also known as Lam Chi
Wai Michael. He founded the Group in 1995 and is now the
Group’s Chief Executive Officer — Hong Kong Operation and
a director of all of our subsidiaries except Tianhaiba. He is
responsible for the overall sales and marketing of our Group.
Mr. Lam started to be involved in the timepiece industry
in 1989 as project manager with a watch company before
founding the Group and has accumulated over 15 years
of experience in sales and marketing since then. Mr. Lam
graduated with a diploma in Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in 1986. He is currently an affiliate member of the
Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Wong Yu Man, Elias (Z3432), aged 45, is an executive Director
appointed on 9 July 2010. He founded the Group in 1995 and
is a director of three subsidiaries companies of the Company.
He is responsible for the overall design and development
of watch, jewelry and display and packaging products of
our Group. Mr. Wong has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in product design and development. He started to
be involved in the timepiece industry in 1984 and has since
worked for a number of companies in watch business where
his responsibilities ranged from producing technical drawings
and designing watch appearances to overall watch product
design and development. He then founded our Group in 1995.
Mr. Wong attained a Certificate in Design (Jewelry) in Lee Wai
Lee Technical Institute (now known as Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Lee Wai Lee)) in 1990.
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Yang Yijun (8 —), aged 40, is an executive Director appointed
on 17 September 2010. He joined our Group in 2010 and is
the Group’s Chief Executive Officer — PRC Operation and the
legal representative of Tianhaiba. He is responsible for the
overall management of our PRC watch business, including the
supervision of assembly process and the sales and marketing
of Tianba and Harpo watches. Mr. Yang was employed as
production managers, general manager by various watch
companies in Shenzhen during the period from 1989 to 2004.
He was the general manager of one of the Group’s contract
manufacturer for watches, where he was primarily responsible
for supervising its overall production process as well as the
strategic planning since 2005. He is a standing committee
member of the Shenzhen Watch & Clock Association (&I

BIRITRIHE) .

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Chi Man, Dennis (3R&3X), aged 43, is an independent
non-executive Director and he joined the Group in 2010.
He is an executive director, the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Mongolia Investment Group Limited
(stock code 402). Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of experience
in accounting and financial management since 1994 serving
multi-national corporations and Hong Kong listed companies.
He obtained a bachelor degree in mechanical engineering
from the University of London in 1990, a master degree in
commerce from the University of New South Wales, Australia in
1992 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Australian Society of Certified Practicing
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is
the chairman of our audit committee and a member of our
remuneration committee.

Lui Tai Lok (& K#£%), aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director and he joined the Group in 2010. He is currently the
Associate Dean of Faculty of Social Sciences and a professor
at the Sociology Department at the University of Hong Kong.
He held various academic posts at the University of Hong
Kong, City Polytechnic (now known as the City University of
Hong Kong) and the Chinese University of Hong Kong during
the period from 1981 to 2009. Professor Lui obtained a doctor
of philosophy in sociology from the University of Oxford in
1991, a master degree of philosophy in sociology from the
University of Oxford in 1985, a master degree of philosophy
in sociology from the University of Hong Kong in 1984 and a
bachelor degree in arts from the University of Hong Kong in
1981 respectively. He is a member of our audit committee and
remuneration committee.
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Yip Kwok Kwan (EE1J), aged 61, is an independent non-
executive Director and he joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Yip
has over 30 years of experience in the equity and debt markets
in Asia from his employment with various financial institutions
and management consultancy firm during the period from
1974 to 2005 where his responsibilities included managing
investments in listed equities, bonds, broking operations and
overall corporate management. Mr. Yip is currently and has
been the chief executive officer of UOB Asia (Hong Kong)
Limited where he supervised its operations in sponsorship and
lead management, of initial public offerings in Hong Kong,
financial advisory services to Hong Kong listed companies,
and merger and acquisition activities in the Asian regional
market since July 2005. Mr. Yip is also an independent non-
executive director of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (stock
code 2320). He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Business
Administration (Honours) from the University of Singapore (now
National University of Singapore) in 1971. He is the chairman
of our remuneration committee and a member of our audit
committee.

Senior Management

Tam Chiu Ming, Tammy (FXF88), aged 45, is the general
manager of our Company. She is the spouse of Mr. Tong
Wai Kuen, Tony and joined our Group in March 1995. She
monitors the administration of our Group. She has extensive
working experience in shipping and merchandising from her
employment with a number of trading and manufacturing
companies during the period from 1983 to 1994 before joining
our Group.

Tong Wai Kuen, Tony (fE{##), aged 48, is the production
manager of our Company. He is the spouse of Ms. Tam Chiu
Ming, Tammy. He is responsible for overseeing the quality
assurance and quality control of our watches since he joined
our Group in 1995. He has over 20 years of experience in the
watch industry working as production manager for different
timepieces manufacturers since 1989 before he joined our
Group.

Cheng Man Wah (#§32%), aged 29, is the financial controller
of the Company. He joined our Group in January 2010 and is
responsible for our overall financial management. Mr. Cheng
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree in 2003 and has over
7 years of experience in financial management. He worked
for Golden Resources Development International Limited and
PricewaterhouseCoopers. He is a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Lee Ka Ho (ZZX%), aged 30, is the accounting manager
of our Group. He joined our Group in June 2010 and is
responsible for overseeing the accounting operations in both
Hong Kong and the PRC and consolidated financial reportings
of our Group. Mr. Lee is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 6 years of
experience in accounting and auditing for Hong Kong
listed companies and PRC companies and he worked in an
international audit firm prior to joining our Group. Mr. Lee
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
major in Accounting in 2004.

Wu Yan (%), aged 44, is the sales and marketing chief
supervisor of Tianhaiba. She joined Tianhaiba in March 2010
and is responsible for sales and marketing of our watches.
Ms. Wu graduated from XKFEKZ)FE£ 5D (Tianjin University
Ye Jin Branch*) with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
in 1989. She has over 10 years of experience in the watch
industry. She worked in E#FIEFTCRYDBERAF (Yi Jin Li
Shi Ji (Shenzhen) Company Limited*) as supervisor of sales
business for 8 years before joining Tianhaiba.

Huang Guorong (EE|%), aged 44, is the assistant to chief
manager (administration/market supervision/examination)
of Tianhaiba. He joined Tianhaiba in March 2010 and is
responsible for business management of Tianhaiba. He has
over 20 years’ experience in business management by holding

(Jurong Wireless Electronic Accessories Factory*) and A%
BB A RBM (the People’s Government of Guo Zhuang
Village, Jurong City”*).

Company Secretary

Chan Sun Kwong (BRE3}), aged 44, is the company secretary
of the Company appointed on 6 December 2010. He has
obtained the Diploma of Business Administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue
Yan University) in 1990. He has over 20 years of auditing,
accounting and company secretarial experience serving
various listed companies in Hong Kong since 1992 and from
his own certified public accounting practice. He is currently
and has been the company secretary and an executive
director of Sam Woo Holdings Limited (stock code 2322) since
March 20083. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Liu Tin Chak, Arnold is the compliance officer of our
Company. For details of his biography, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” under this section.

Annual Report 2010 £ R

ERE 30 AEENSTHBLERE . B
2010F 6 AMAREE  BEEEFERTH
N BERAEENGETBHRE - T4t
BREBFSIMASEE  BAFEEL
MARRPBERARMSE RETER - BAINA
AEFATEN —REBZEEMT I =%4E
MR2004 FEENELBRBIAE  TBEHFE -

RE 445 REBNHERTSEENER
EIE - M2010F3AMAREH - BERM
M SESREHE R IS HE R TIF - R 1989
FEERNREZRERENR BRTIERSBL
B HABIOFEERITELR - RMARXR
BEER - BN EERECRIDBRARME
BUHE XGRS e F -

EEY 445 RETFMAKEDHETTHRE
B MISEE,/H%)  BR2010F3 A IAKX
BT AEXETNEREEIE ZXe%
MEFEL R, BRTBHEARBITEE
BEESFEERMN BRI 20 FEKEIREH -

ARAME

BREN  445% MN2010F 12 A6 HEEEA
RRNFIHRRIIE o b 1990 F S BB 1
CERORBEAEBECAE) IHEE R #
BE20FHEZ SR ERAFMELR -t
1992 F RABNLZHEEA LM AR - WHZE
S EBLEFE - thBE2003F3 A —EET
“MEEABRARRHD KK : 2322) A 7]
MERNTES - MMABBEIWERY - &
BERTMERITBRAELAS - KRBT
RERBEGTMAGEREE -

EEREME
BRERE/ARBNEREME - BRAMKNE
BB - SRR TES K-

20



21

Pacific

Directors’ Report

The directors (“Directors”) of Powerwell Pacific Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 32 to 99.

An interim dividend of approximately HK$14.3 million was
paid during the year. The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK 2.0 cents per share, totalling HK$3.0
million, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
28 April 2011, Thursday to 3 May 2011, Tuesday, both days
inclusive. During this period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27 April
2011, Wednesday.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
The Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
approximately HK$30.3 million, as computed in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The approximate percentages in respect of the Group’s
sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAEET
The largest supplier BRAHFER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate RAREEEEET

Mr. Yang Yijun, an executive Director, has interest in Shenzhen
Longgang District Henggang Town Xunlong Metal Processing
Factory (“Xunlong Factory”), which is one of the Group’s
five largest suppliers for the year. Details of transactions
with Xunlong Factory are disclosed under the Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions section
of this report.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year have the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Tin Chak, Arnold
Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter
Mr. Wong Yu Man, Elias
Mr. Yang Yijun

(appointed on 9 July 2010)
(appointed on 9 July 2010)
(appointed on 9 July 2010)
(appointed on 17 September 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chi Man, (appointed on 27 September 2010)
Dennis

Professor Lui Tai Lok

Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan

(appointed on 27 September 2010)
(appointed on 27 September 2010)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs. Liu Tin
Chak, Arnold, Lam Chi Wai, Peter, and Wong Yu Man, Elias
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
election for the forthcoming year.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals

with highest emoluments are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section “Connection Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report and in note
31 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or any
of its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Liu Tin Chak, Arnold, Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter, Mr.
Wong Yu Man, Elias and Mr. Yang Yijun has entered into a
service contract with our Company for a term of three years
from the Listing Date with monthly remuneration at the rate of
HK$80,000. Under the service contracts, after each completed
year of service, they will each be entitled to payment of a sum
equal to a month’s salary and a discretionary bonus.

Each of Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis, Professor Lui Tai Lok
and Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan, the independent non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with our
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
27 September 2010 with remuneration of HK$240,000 per
year.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation
As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange pursuant to the model code for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company
(a) Interest in the share of the Company

Director Capacity/Nature of interest
S B RntE

Mr. Liu Tin Chak, Arnold Corporate interest (Note)
BXR2%EE NAVE (H157)

Note: These shares are held by an associated corporation Data
Champion Limited. Directors’ interests in an associated
corporation are as disclosed immediately below.

(b) Interest in the share of an associated corporation
Name of associated corporation: Data Champion Limited

Director Capacity/Nature of interest
2= B REEME

Mr. Liu Tin Chak, Arnold Beneficial owner

BREZSE EmEEA

Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter Beneficial owner

MEREE EnEAA

Mr. Wong Yu Man, Elias Beneficial owner

AN R EnEEA
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Since the Scheme has become effective on 22
December 2010, no share options were granted, exercised
or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme during the
period under review and there were no outstanding share
options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2010.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholders interests in shares

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows
that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

RREHE B0 HENE

Beneficial owner

BEamEAA

Data Champion Limited

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

During the year, the Company has entered into a number of

transactions with the following entities and persons, who will

constitute connected persons to the Company upon listing

of the Company and hence, the transactions with them will

constitute connected and continuing connected transactions.

Capacity/Nature of interest
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Details of the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for the year are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Tenancy agreement between Tianhaiba and Shenzhen
Guifeng Watch Company Limited (“Guifeng”)

On 26 August 2010, Tianhaiba as principal tenant and
Guifeng as sub-tenant entered into a tenancy agreement
commencing from 1 August 2010 to 31 March 2011 at a
monthly rent of RMB11,500 (approximately HK$13,110)
(exclusive of management fee, water, electricity and
other outgoings) for use as a factory.

Outsourcing arrangement with Guifeng

On 21 December 2010, the Company and Guifeng
entered into a master agreement whereby Guifeng
agrees to carry out watch assembly work for our Group
based on purchase orders placed by our Group from
time to time for a term from 21 December 2010 until 31
December 2012.

Supply arrangement with Xunlong Factory

On 21 December 2010, the Company and Xunlong
Factory entered into a master supply agreement whereby
Xunlong Factory agrees to supply watch components
including watch cases, stainless steel bands, glass and
silver rings to our Group based on purchase orders
placed by our Group from time to time for a term from 21
December 2010 until 31 December 2012.

Supply arrangement with Pohint Industries Limited
(“Pohint”)

On 16 December 2010, the Company and Pohint entered
into a master supply agreement whereby Pohint agrees
to supply display and packaging products to our Group
based on purchase orders placed by our Group from
time to time for a term from 16 December 2010 until 30
April 2011. Pohint which will cease to the continuing
connected transactions after April 2011.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions
are set out in the Prospectus.
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Annual Caps and Actual Figures of Non-Exempted
Continuing Connected Transactions of the Company

Pacific

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) has granted a waiver pursuant to Rule
20.42(3) of the GEM Listing Rules from strict compliance
with the announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements in relation to the above continuing
connected transactions. Subjected to the waiver
Conditions as stipulated in paragraph 2 of “Application
For Waivers” in the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Waiver” in the Prospectus of the
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1R 4% 8l 2tk £ R B 25 20.42(3) & 5k
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Company dated 29 December 2010.

Transactions

w

During the Year, the Group has duly complied with the
requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Tenancy agreement between Tianhaiba and
Guifeng

Outsourcing arrangement with Guifeng

Supply arrangement with Xunlong Factory

Supply arrangement with Pohint
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The independent non-executive Directors, Cheung Chi Man,
Dennis, Lui Tai Lok and Yip Kwok Kwan, have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreement with terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 20.38 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Board engaged the auditors of the Company to perform
certain factual finding procedures on the continuing connected
transactions on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Related Services 4400, “Engagement to Perform
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information”
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have reported their factual findings for the
selected samples based on the agreed procedures to the
Board.

The auditor of the Company have confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board,;

(2) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of
the relevant agreements governing the transactions;

(8) involving the provision of goods or services are in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; and

(4) have not exceeded the annual caps for the year ended
31 December 2010 as disclosed in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 29 December 2010.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float since its shares became listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange on 26
January 2011 and up to the date of this report.

Directors’ interest in a competing business

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors, the
management shareholders of the Company and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business which causes or may cause a
significant competition with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this
report.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, CIMB
Securities (HK) Limited (“CIMB”), as at 31 December 2010,
except for (i) CIMB’s participation as one of the joint sponsors
and the sole bookrunner in relation to the Listing; and (ii)
the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and the CIMB dated 3 December 2010, neither
CIMB or its directors, employees or associates had any
interest in relation to the Group.

Subsequent Events
Details of material subsequent events of the Group are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

During the Year, Grant Thornton Hong Kong (now known
as JBPB & Co.) resigned and BDO Limited was appointed
auditor of the Company. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-
appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Tin Chak, Arnold
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 11 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

|IBDO

EEE : +852 2541 5041
{#H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited
R X FEBMERADH

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
32 to 99, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BDO Limited
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BEREAFEEREERATERR
(RERZEZMEIHERE])

RMEBFTNHRNENREEQERTELAF
FEBARAR(TERR ) REKBRR
WA EEEDNGEAMEHRER  EFRRERN
2010 12 A31 BMERE R ERQRFBKNKR
FEBZEZALFENRAZERER 56
REMERREEERBEHER  URFTEES
BRI E R E M R &R -

EENGaMBBRRAAENER

BERAEZAARBEREMASHMDN
(BAUBHEERDREB(RBHERDHKE
REMBZAMBMER - NSHEAMBMRIE
HEEMAFARER  REEERRRELEE
ISR L BN ERIES] - ARG A BT
BRIEFEANMFRERMERNERFER
BRat

REMNEE
BMNETERERMOBAEZEREY
HBHREREHER  WIRB(ERZ1981F R
ALEYE O REMERBBRRMELIRE Btz
N NRERIEEAME A o BB TR A®
ERBTAEAEMATEEREEST -

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate no. P04434

Hong Kong, 11 March 2011
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: PaN
Consolidated Statement of #IFE&EEEHWNER
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE2010%F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLFE
2010 2009
2010 2009 F
Notes HK$°’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FAET
Revenue A 6 208,195 164,511
Cost of sales SHEA (160,350) (125,907)
Gross profit EF 47,845 38,604
Other income E A 6 727 2,657
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SR A (9,747) (2,509)
Administrative expenses THAX (23,459) (17,517)
Other operating expenses Hhe &M (3,585) (373)
Finance costs BB KA 8 (30) (67)
Profit before income tax R BT 45 8% Aias F 9 11,751 20,795
Income tax expense FriSHi i 10 (3,862) (3,229)
Profit for the year FERER 7,889 17,566
Other comprehensive income FREMEEEE
for the year
— Exchange differences arising =~ — /BN ERSE
on translation of foreign A HYEE N R
operations 170 —
Total comprehensive income for FRZHENFEHEHE
the year 8,059 17,566
Profit for the year attributable FREFESLT
to:
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZ 2SN 11 7,563 16,498
Non-controlling interests FEIE il = 326 1,068
7,889 17,566
Total comprehensive income for FRAZHEWFZATERE
the year attributable to: (P
Owners of the Company VN/NEIET 2N 7,733 16,498
Non-controlling interests FEPEHIRE RS 326 1,068
8,059 17,566
Earnings per share for profit ARBEE ABLE
attributable to owners of the MR 2 F
Company — Basic — B 13 HK 7.0 cents #{ll  HK 15.3 cents #fll
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Pacific

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

As at 31 December 2010

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments and deposits

Prepaid tax

Amounts due from related parties

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Dividend payables
Provision for income tax
Bank loans

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans

Net assets

EQUITY

Share capital

Proposed final dividend
Other reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liu Tin Chak, Arnold
BXE

Director

EF

BERAHE
FRBEE
ERN G

[k
HimA A

RBAE
e

B 5 UK

E‘Eﬁmlﬁ)}&%

SEUNERE]

JEUL BB A 5508

H?D\:FTE AR
CRIEE

'T/T/_:E'zjé BT AR

RITHER LB

REBEE

B 5 ME M FRIA
FEHHE £
PRSI
fETTEW\

RBEEFE
REERRBAE

HFEE
FiTER

BEFE
i

B
EEARRE
HitbfE M

ZAUNCIL ZEPN L i

FEIE s
RS

AR BB R

R2010F 12431 H

Notes

Hiet

15
16

19
20
21
22
24

29

27

27

28
29

2010 2009
2010 & 2009 £
HK$’000 HK$'000
i FET
6,976 6,372
230 —
5,555 —
12,761 6,372
16,412 1,442
24,575 20,031
18,857 1,583
1,552 309
— 547

— 13,983

— 22
28,262 15,215
89,658 53,132
68,803 18,595
— 250
3,239 3,168
— 55
72,042 22,068
17,616 31,064
30,377 37,436
— 621
30,377 36,815
10 —
3,000 —
27,347 35,737
30,357 35,737
20 1,078
30,377 36,815

Lam Chi Wai, Peter

&

Director

EZ
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Statement of Financial Position B &R 3R
As at 31 December 2010 R2010F 12931 H
2010 2009
2010 & 2009
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZKE 18 30,367 -
Current assets REEE
Dividend receivable JE WS A% 2. 3,000 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B R B FRIE 26 660 —
3,660 —
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAtbfE S I R ERHE A 660 —
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,000 —
Net assets EEFE 33,367 -
EQUITY R
Share capital A&7 28 10 —
Proposed final dividend Eam AR E 29 3,000 —
Other reserves HunfEE 29 30,357 -
Total equity R 33,367 —
Liu Tin Chak, Arnold Lam Chi Wai, Peter
BXE &R
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of FEREINER
Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ2010F 12831 HIFFE

2010 2009
2010 & 2009 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET

Cash flows from operating activities RETHNEESR

Profit before income tax B Fr 45 %50 A g A 11,751 20,795
Adjustments for: MTYSIREL AR -
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - B REEITE
equipment 1,050 1,207
Impairment on receivables FEWCRIE R (E — 234
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial ST AQNFEK),
instruments E1a (501) 63
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME BEMLEES
plant and equipment 18,/ (M) 3 (13)
Write-off of property, plant and ) E VSR Lk
equipment — 38
Write-down of inventories to net W EE] 25 FE
realisable value — 103
Interest income 2 WA (129) (1,945)
Finance costs & A A 30 67
Exchange differences HEH R 139 =

Operating profit before working capital ~ &3E8& &= B AT L% A

changes 12,343 20,549
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEGEmMm), m (14,956) 7,663
(Increase)/Decrease in trade E 5 EWHRIE - TR RIE
receivables, prepayments and Kig& (&), md
deposits (21,778) 3,495
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other & 5 & E b fE {3018
payables #n, CRid) 46,637 (10,028)
Decrease in amounts due to directors FEAST E B R IE R — (962)
Movements in amounts due from/to FEMS, e+ B A =508
related parties el 547 (553)
Cash generated from operations EEEANIRS 22,793 20,169
Interest paid EFIE (30) (67)
Income tax paid B ETS (5,034) (878)
Net cash generated A ST B E LR 2 FRE
from operating activities 17,729 19,224
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2010 2009

2010 & 2009

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHET

Cash flows from investing activities RETHNEESR

Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHERRITIF TR D — 1,283
Purchase of property, plant and BEMZE  BENEE

equipment (1,646) (1,585)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERKBS

plant and equipment KIE 2 =
Purchase of other intangible assets EEHMELEE 32 (2,379) —
Net cash inflow/(outflow) fERWiESm T AR

from redemption/acquisition WERA Rt )38

of financial instruments 14,506 (2,844)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W HE — KB ] 30 96 —
Interest received B UF & 129 1,945
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBESE (AT

investing activities B FEE 10,708 (1,201)

Cash flows from financing activities RMEFBNRER

Issuance of shares BT 1,033 —
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W hE JE R e o (1,229) —
Proceeds from bank loans RITERBRIE — 690
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (676) (344)
Dividend paid B E (14,551) (18,189)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEB T 2 FEE (15,423) (17,843)
Net increase in cash and RERBRESEFEYEMNTFHE

cash equivalents 13,014 180
Cash and cash equivalents FINEESRELSEEY

at beginning of year 15,215 15,035
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes BEXREFHHFTE 33 —
Cash and cash equivalents FHRNBERESEEY

at end of year 28,262 15,215
Analysis of balances of cash RERBREEBYNESRD

and cash equivalents w
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBRNIE S 28,262 15,215
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0 ,_L_| /_\ \EIH— N7/ ,é.%,.z\
Consolidated Statement of FEEmEER
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BtZ2010F 12831 HIFFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
LS LN 4
Proposed Non-
Share Capital Merger Translation final  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  dividend profits* Total interests Equity

BA  RARE' AGGE' AFER BEAMRE  RENA @ sEeEE e
HK8000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET  tET  TEr TRt TEr Bt TRt TBL  TEi

At 1 January 2009 12009F141A — — 10 — — 35,583 35,593 2,095 37,688
Transactions with HEEANR S
OWNers:
Dividend paid BfIRE
(note 12) (B3t 12) — — = = —  (16354)  (16,354) —  (16,354)
Dividend paid to B ERE
owners of non- BEARRE (W7
controlling interests 12)
(note 12) — — — — — — — (2,085) (2,085)

- - - - —(16354)  (16354)  (2085)  (18,439)

Profit for the year/Total ERH /£
comprehensive income 2 AN EE

for the year = = — = = 16,498 16,498 1,068 17,566
At 31 December 2009 4200912431 8
and 1 January 2010 20101418 — = 10 = = 35,727 35,737 1,078 36,815
Transactions with HEEANR S
owners:
Dividend paid BARE
(note 12) (Hs#12) - — — — —  (14301)  (14,301) —  (14301)

Acquisition of non- B FEHRAIIER

controlling interests  (#fi£29(a))

(note 29(a)) = 155 = = = = 155 (1,384) (1,229)
Capital contributionto ~ FI—FIMBAAE

a subsidiary (note E(l#29(6)

29(b)(ii) (i) - - 1,033 - - - 1,033 . 1,033
Issue of ordinary EaLERMF

shares (note 28(a),  28(a) (b) % (c))

(b)(c) 10 - (10) = = — - _ _
10 155 1023 - — (14301 (13118)  (1,384) (14,497
Profit for the year FRiEF = = = = = 7,563 7,563 326 7,889
Other comprehensive  Ef2EE
income:

Exchange differences BREBNEREL
arising on translation ~ HEKEE

of foreign operations — — — 170 — — 170 — 170
Total comprehensive ~ FR2EREES
income for the year = = = 170 = 7,563 7,733 326 8,059
2010 final dividend 201053
proposed (note12)  KERE(Hi12) - - — - 3,000 (3,000) = = =
At 31 December 2010 R20105
12A31H 10 155 1,033 170 3,000 25,989 30,357 20 30,377
* The total of these balances represented “Other reserves” in the * I E E R R AR R AR S B ISR R 0T B
consolidated statement of financial position. &l -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

1.

General Information

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 14 June 2010 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Company’s
registered office is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company'’s principal place of business is located at 19/F,
Henry Centre, 131 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 26
January 2011.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activity of the Company’s
subsidiaries is the provision of sourcing and procurement
solutions to customers for production of watches,
costume jewelries, and display and packaging products.
It is the Group’s business strategy to develop watches
business in the People’s of Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and in this connection, the Group acquired Shenzhen
Tianhaiba Watches Company Limited S®3ITh X858
BRAF (“Tianhaiba”) on 1 February 2010 (note 30) and
the trademarks of certain watch brands in the PRC on 30
June 2010 (note 17).

The directors of the Company consider the ultimate
parent company of the Group at 31 December 2010 to
be Data Champion Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements on pages 32 to 99 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 11 March 2011.
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Pacific

Reorganisation and Basis of Presentation

The Group was founded in 1995 by Mr. Liu Tin Chak,
Arnold, Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter, and Mr. Wong Yu Man,
Elias (together, the “Founding Shareholders”). Pursuant
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) as described
below, the Company has since 20 December 2010
become the holding company of its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are
summarised below:

(1)

(4)

(5)

(6)

On 13 April 2010, Good Destination Co., Ltd. (“Good
Destination”) acquired the non-controlling interests
of Display & Packaging Limited at a total cash
consideration of HK$200,000. The Group’s effective
interest in Display & Packaging Limited afterward
increased from 66.7% to 100%.

On 7 May 2010, Good Destination acquired the
non-controlling interests of EC Manufacturing
Limited at a total cash consideration of HK$2,000.
The Group’s effective interest in EC Manufacturing
Limited afterward increased from 80% to 100%.

On 16 June 2010, Powerwell Pacific Limited
(“Powerwell Pacific”) issued 752 shares in
aggregate to the Founding Shareholders for cash
at US$1 per share. On 20 June 2010, Powerwell
Pacific issued 44 shares, representing 5.5% equity
interests in Powerwell Pacific, to Ms. Tam Chiu
Ming, Tammy (“Ms. Tam”) at a total subscription
price of HK$1,027,000.

On 22 June 2010, Powerwell Pacific and the non-
controlling shareholder of Goldnet Holdings Group
Limited (“Goldnet BVI”), which was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, transferred their shares,
which represent the entire issued capital, in Goldnet
BVI to the Founding Shareholders for cash at US$1
per share.

On 23 June 2010, Powerwell Pacific acquired the
non-controlling interests of Ampress Packaging Asia
Limited from Ms. Tam at a total cash consideration
of HK$1,027,000. The Group’s effective interest
in Ampress Packaging Asia Limited afterward
increased from 90% to 100%.

On 20 September 2010, Good Destination acquired
from the Founding Shareholders a total of 10,000
shares, which represent 10% of the issued share
capital, of Richmind International Investment
Limited (“Richmind”) at a total cash consideration of
HK$225,400.

EAREIEE
AEBN1995FHERZBLAE « MEE
Tk RELA X E(ATEAIAKRE ] A
Yoo RETHMEA(EMA]  AARB
2010 12 20 B2 E AR FAEK AN &
BEETSHEBARIMIZKRA AR - BEE
MR FEBEB T

(1)

(4)

(6)

M2010F 4 A13H ' Good
Destination Co., Ltd.([Good
Destination]) % # IR € K B
200,000/ 7t U4 EEDisplay &
Packaging Limited &9 3F #% %I #
e H 1% K% B RDisplay &
Packaging Limited A & BX # 25 /
66.7% EZE 100%

M2010F5 H7H ' Good
Destination 2 #2358 4 X {& 2,000 &
ToUE R B RS B BR A R R FEHE B
Bmeo Hig AEERRERE
BRARMNEREZRAHBO%IEE
100% °

MR 201046 A 16 B » Powerwell
Pacific Limited ([Powerwell
Pacific )RR & &K 1 E TR AIHA
IR R EEITA £ 752 fRR% 5 ° 72010
F6 A20H ' Powerwell Pacific 1
48 R B (B 1,027,000 7 JT [ 74 A3 B
Tt )BT 44 B I&AD (1R
Powerwell Pacific 5.5% & 7~ #&

#3) e

M 201046 A22H ' Powerwell
Pacific 2 Goldnet Holdings
Group Limited ([ Goldnet BVI] -
REBRZHSHMRZHAA)
BIEIERIRRIZIR S TR ETH
828 B SR ¥ P #5 Goldnet BVIFR
P (ANEEHEBEITIRA) °

R 20106 A 23 H » Powerwell
Pacific £ 43R © L& 1,027,000 /&
TTRARZ T WEMERE (SN E
BRAGIK TR - Hig K&
B e M) ERARNE
PR 90% 12 &= 100% °

MR2010F 9 A20H ' Good
Destination 2 #8358 € X (& 225,400
BILRAIBERRWE S ZRERE
ERAEZR] A 10,000 %
B (B EEITRRAN 10%) °
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2. Reorganisation and Basis of Presentation

(Continued)

(7) On 16 December 2010, the Founding Shareholders
transferred their interests in the Company, which
represent the entire issued share capital of the
Company of 4 shares of HK$1 each in aggregate,
to Data Champion Limited at the consideration of
HK$4. Pursuant to a written resolution passed on
20 December 2010, each of the existing issued and
unissued shares of HK$1 each in the share capital
of the Company was sub-divided into 10 shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Share Sub-division”).

(8) On 17 December 2010, the Company acquired from
the Founding Shareholders a total of 100 shares,
which represent the entire issued share capital, of
Goldnet Holdings Group Limited (“Goldnet HK”),
which was incorporated in Hong Kong, for a total
cash considerations of HK$100. As at the date
of the acquisition, Goldnet HK had 100% equity
interests in Tianhaiba which was acquired by
Goldnet HK on 1 February 2010 (note 30).

(9) On 20 December 2010, the Company acquired
from the Founding Shareholders a total of 4 shares,
which represent the entire issued share capital,
of Good Destination and a total of 100 shares,
which represent the entire issued share capital,
of Goldnet BVI and issued to Data Champion
Limited 50,000 shares (after the Share Sub-
division) as consideration thereof. As at the date
of the acquisition, Good Destination had 100%
equity interests in Display & Packaging Limited,
EC Manufacturing Limited, Prestige Corporation
Limited, EC (Asia) Limited, Ampress Pacific Limited
and Richmind, and 90% equity interests in Ampress
Packaging Limited.

(10) On 20 December 2010, the Company acquired from
the Founding Shareholders and Ms. Tam a total
of 800 shares, which represent the entire issued
share capital, of Powerwell Pacific and issued to
Data Champion Limited 49,960 shares (after Share
Sub-division) as consideration thereof. As at the
date of the transfer, Powerwell Pacific had 100%
equity interests in EC Pacific Limited, Ampress
Merchandising Limited, Ampress Packaging Asia
Limited and Powerwell Finance Limited.

Immediately after the Reorganisation, the Company has
become the holding company of its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group and all the shares of the Company
was owned by Data Champion Limited, which was owned
as to 95.2% by the Founding Shareholders and 4.8% by
Ms. Tam.

2.
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Bl 15 A% B Y7 B Good Destination
AHABEBRDEAZ AR E2HE
% 17 B AN ) X Goldnet BVIA #%
100R% B (BN a2 A Al & 3 B %
TR A& ) » I [ Data Champion
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Good Destination 5% Display &
Packaging Limited « Z28liE A
AR BEARAR - BE(E
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Ampress Packaging Limited 90%
MRS o
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Pacific

Reorganisation and Basis of Presentation
(Continued)

There has been a continuation of the risks and benefits
to the founding shareholders of the Group (the “Founding
Shareholders”), acting together on a collective basis
under certain arrangements which existed among the
Founding Shareholders in order to manage and control
the business and operations of the Group collectively,
before and immediately after the Reorganisation.
Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group have been
accounted for using merger accounting in accordance
with the Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations”. Under merger
accounting, the net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing book values
from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
is recognised as consideration for goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party
or parties’ interests. The statement of comprehensive
income of the Group includes the results of each of
the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the
date of the common control combination. All significant
intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on combination. Non-controlling interests
represent the interests of outside shareholders not held
by the Founding Shareholders in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries, and are presented
separately in the statement of comprehensive income of
the Group and within equity in the statements of financial
position of the Group, separately from equity attributable
to the Company’s owners.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for
the current year and prior year have been prepared to
present the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company and its subsidiaries as if the current group
structure had been in existence throughout the current
year and prior year, or since their respective dates of
incorporation/establishment or acquisition, whichever was
shorter. The consolidated statements of financial position
of the Group as of 31 December 2010 and 2009 have
been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of
the Company and its subsidiaries as if the current group
structure had been in existence at those dates.
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Adoption of New or Amended HKFRSs

For the purpose of preparing this consolidated financial
statements, the Group has applied all applicable HKFRSs
that are effective for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2010.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
certain new and revised HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective and have not been adopted
early by the Group. The directors anticipate that all of
the respective pronouncements will be adopted in the
Group’s accounting policy for the first period beginning
after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information
on new and revised HKFRSs that are expected to have
an impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Certain other new and revised HKFRSs have been
issued but are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2011. The new standard clarifies and
simplifies the definition of related parties. It also provides
for a partial exemption of related party disclosure to
government-related entities for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the same
government. This amendment is not expected to have
significant impact to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and addresses
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
The new standard reduces the number of measurement
categories of financial assets and all financial assets will
be measured at either amortised cost or fair value based
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those on certain
equity investments which will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the new standard on
the Group’s results and financial position in the first year
of application.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments

The interpretation clarifies the requirements of HKFRSs
when an entity renegotiates the terms of a financial
liability with its creditor and the creditor agrees to accept
the entity’s shares or other equity instruments to settle
the financial liability fully or partially. The interpretation is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010. The directors are currently assessing the possible
impact of this interpretation on the Group’s results and
financial position in the first year of application.
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Adoption of New or Amended HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual improvements 2010

The HKICPA issued “Improvements to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards 2010”. Unless
otherwise specified, the amendments contained in the
improvements are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2011. The directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the amendments
contained in the improvements on the Group’s results
and financial position in the first year of application.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

4.1 Basis of preparation
The significant accounting policies that conform to
HKFRSs and have been used in the preparation of
these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied
throughout the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for
financial assets and financial liabilities classified
as at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments, which are stated at fair values.
The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of these
financial statements. Although these estimates
and assumptions are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current events
and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates and assumptions. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 5.

4.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries (note 4.3) are consolidated from
the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses
resulting from intercompany transaction are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESTHBEHEE)
(Continued)
4.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 42 HEEXE(E)

Acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using
the acquisition method of accounting. The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are generally
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.
The consideration transferred is measured at
the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange.
Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Any subsequent
changes in the measurement of that contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability will
be recognised in profit or loss, unless they arise
from obtaining additional information about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date within 12 months from the date of acquisition
(in which case they will be recognised as an
adjustment to the cost of the business combination).
Transaction costs that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination will be
expensed as incurred. If the Group holds interests
in the acquiree immediately prior to obtaining
control, these interests will be treated as if disposed
of and re-acquired at fair value on the date of
obtaining control.

In addition to measuring the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets, the Group may elect, on a
transaction by transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interest at fair value.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interests
consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of original business combination and the share of
changes in equity by non-controlling interests since
the date of the combination. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a
debit balance.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group acquires an additional interest in
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, the transaction
will be accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders in their capacity as owners and
therefore no goodwill will be recognised as a result
of such transactions.

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with any
remaining interest retained by the Group being
recognised at fair value as if reacquired.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents
the excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. Goodwill is initially recognised
as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually at the
end of the reporting period or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of goodwill may be impaired
(note 4.7). On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary,
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold is included in determining the amount of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESTHBEHEE)

(Continued)

4.5 Other intangible assets 45 HMtBEEE
Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially EREEEEEN S IENNER
at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets R NUILHERE  AIERTHE
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less PR ) MR T & B HR K AN fERL R BT 8
accumulated amortisation and any impairment MAERBERBEB(HEEL7) 5 -
losses (note 4.7). Amortisation for intangible assets AI{E A HA R A BT & E iR
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line HETAERFHUNERE T LS
basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation tH o B A E R Al L E RS RN
commences when the intangible assets are o TREBRAUFRFHNBERLE
available for use. Intangible assets with indefinite ERRAREA&E R TR E RS
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent FIER ©
accumulated impairment losses.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment 4.6 Y- BERZE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost W BB KR BEKANER R
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment WeERERREERIB(HE47)E
losses (note 4.7). Depreciation is provided to write HIER - WREET A EAFHNUE
off the cost less their residual value, using straight- AROEFT BRI B DA B X AN R E £4
line method, over their estimated useful lives. BE-7AREHENTHREFR
Land and building classified as finance leases are MA R EmERAGTRITE - &
depreciated over the unexpired term of the leases. I8 B LA T FFERGHEITE
Other items are depreciated at the following rates
per annum:
Leasehold improvements HEEE 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment R - HRERERE 20%
Plant and machinery R Nt B 20%

Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other costs such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

4.7

4.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets having
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other assets
including property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications
that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. A reversal of such impairment is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises unless that asset is carried at revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for the revalued amount.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories for the sourcing
and procurement business is determined using first-
in, first-out basis whereas cost of inventories for the
PRC watch business is determined using weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4.
(Continued)
4.9 Financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are classified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and loans and receivables. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs. Derecognition
of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss include financial assets held for trading and

financial assets designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives (note 4.12),
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

AEBESREED BRAFEA
BRmD i EE R E R & &K
He EERERTHEBEREEN
R@REERNNTEARNERMEE
DR MR RER  @REHE
BHEM G RE -

MBTRHEERSEARENSA
A TEAMGXWETANE - I T
R - ERRBHNEREETNE
RHAAE - EREER VT HER
R DRAFEFE  MREREL
BN EFABRDAE - AER
BRERZRATE - BRIRIKRE
BB ERRBEE - AR
ETZ2EEARNER LIRS
iR SREENTHURRER °

REBESEHEHEMEELTE
Bl AFHERE A EAEERESE
1 o A HBREM LR ERE - AR
BEREED REE LERRERE

B
BAFPEGABZHEHBEE

BATEHAABSNEREERR
FFEENEREE RN YT HER
RHEE AR AP EFABSNE R

HERESREENB M ARNE
HIRHE  XZeBEERTHR
ERMTAAS—HBOALAERRE
THERERERBNOERE
A& A2 AREREESRE
E-RIFTETA(ME412) (B
FEMNRARITETR)EEER
BRI TAXSRERALN B
ARSI REHEEE -

W—PEaHaa — DA LRA
TTET A - AIBMESAKNKIIA
BRAFEFABRNERMEE @ If
BRAXTETAS BEHIN SR
REREH - KAEEIEDIIRA
APTETARIBRSS -



Pacific

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4.
(Continued)
4.9 Financial assets (Continued)

FTESHBEBEZE)
49 SRMEEE)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if

the following criteria are met:

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

— the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined by reference
to active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists. Fair value
gain or loss does not include any interest earned on
these financial assets. Interest income is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies in note
4.15.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4.
(Continued)
4.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

At each reporting date, loans and receivables
are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

— Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss on loans and receivables
decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

4.9

4.10

4.11

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment
losses for doubtful receivables are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery of trade receivables is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account in respect of that
receivable are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
borrowings and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (note
4.19). A financial liability is derecognised when
the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESTHBEHEE)
(Continued)
4.11 Financial liabilities (Continued) 411 eRMAEE)
Trade and other payables ESREMENZE

4.12

4.13

4.14

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments
are accounted for as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

4.15

4.16

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, net of applicable value-added tax,
rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and other income can be measured
reliably, revenue and other income is recognised as
follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and
the effective interest method.

Freight income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant leases.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

417

4.18

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. The Group
operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which
operates in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’
salaries to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as expenses in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognisesd
until the time of leave.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

4.18

4.19

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from
the Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rates at
the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity. Such translation differences are recognised
as profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
entity is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

4.

FE

B BERBEE)

4.18 HMNEE(4E)

4.19

BAFEYIRB AN ERNIES
®IHE  DRATEREEE BN
RITEXBEV 2R/ N TFEERR
B —EB D o ASMNEBEHERAESE
RAANRREERIEB TN T EHR

= o
Ean

REHMBERRA > EATRAR
AEBZ25EE 25 NBINRBTH
BRI BHE  HEHERBT -
BESEAEHARSE AP KHE
EFE BB - WARRX AR
A HERMNERTE BTG
BEE =R 3 4 KRR B - Al IR RS HIA
MFHERFERBTT - B MmE
EREAEEINEME2EKRAR
MR - YN ERE THBREFED
R - BRENXZBINHES
SMVA B HARI R iR

BERE

TEBWE  ZRIEEEMNSE
REEMBERANEERTE K
YREERERARBMER - &
BREE — AL AMNARKREE
RERERENLENEE - Bt
fEERAEEERIIER -

EEERANELR BENEKEL
B MOETTIRME EFRE Mg
ENEBE - BEERARENS
BERBEEMKRARD - EAM L
TRBREEREEFRRTRGEX
HENME BRESR - EEKRA
TEBERERL -




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited ZIE AP FEBEERADT Annual Report 2010 £ #§ 56
S aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaamaaae

FTESHBRBEE)
4.20 FiBHiNETEE

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4.
(Continued)
4.20 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax. The tax
currently payable is based on the taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor accounting
profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilised the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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(Continued)
4.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

4.21

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an
expense or income in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items credited or debited directly to
equity, in which case the tax is also recognised
directly in equity, or where they arise from the
initial accounting for a business combination.
In the case of a business combination, the tax
effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill
or in determining the excess of the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabitlies over the aggregate of
the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s line of business.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

4.21

4.22

Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that bank interest income, interest income
and fair value gains/losses arising from financial
assets/liabilities and derivative financial instruments,
income tax and corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

Segment assets include all assets but investments
in financial instruments and tax assets.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party:

(a) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group (this
includes subsidiaries); or

(b) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or

(c) has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the party is an associate of the Group;

(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the Group
is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent;

(v) the party is a close member of family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with directly or indirectly, any
individuals referred to in (iv) or (v); or
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(Continued)
4.22 Related parties (Continued)
(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or any entity that is related party of the
Group.

Close members of the family of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to
impairment of assets. When an impairment trigger
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed
in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a
number of key estimates and assumptions about
future events, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In
making these key estimates and judgements, the
directors take into consideration assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the reporting date and appropriate market and
discount rates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

4.

5.

TESHTEEBEE)

4.22 BB AL (E)
(Vi) ZBATREAEBLBARE
B EMBEBALNEENRE
B 18 F) M &% &9 B B 12 18 A 5T

£l

AR ALHTRARZERRZ
R e B BB A TR Z % (E
AALHENRENKS -

B RSt fhat R A

et R HE & TR (G - LB ER
BEEMARRER  BEBEHBERY
REBRBEATHEREENEM

5.1 BAEFHFTRER
REE &R KAEH At KR
PELAMEATIEES gm
HARMERGERER - BEKRE
e TEMBFEENEERAE
) B D B P X R 38 B ) i 5 B R
RETARAN T

H2HEERE
REBBBIEREBETRELIRE
ERENEBE RN ERE - WfF
EERRENEER RBgEEEE
BRI U [El & 5 o EWEEM&IEIE%“EH%
AAENEREE EMAZEEHN
*K%#WIE%#&F“ ﬁ@
RAREMSRIEERZE - WA 58
;EE?B;T\/D%$T7/%7FH ° {’Eﬁlﬂz—ri
DR RAGR  EEZERFZEE
RIRE B ERR R R RIEE 5
BRI ENRR - AEEETHT
ENE RS LR ] € Y ENS
BFIVNERRS o




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited ZIE AP FEBEERADT
S aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaamaaae

5.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

5.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment of receivables

The Group determines impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the
customers/debtors to make the required payments.
A considerable amount of estimate and judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables which is based on the ageing of
the accounts receivable balance, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience.
If the financial conditions of customers/debtors
deteriorate, additional allowance for bad and
doubtful debts may be required.

Inventory valuation method

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would assess realisability of the inventories and the
Group may make reference to the ageing analysis
of the inventories. A considerable amount of
judgement and estimates is required in determining
such allowance. If conditions which have an
impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, allowances may be required.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of the financial instruments are
determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select an appropriate
valuation method and makes assumption that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
issue date and each reporting date. The valuation
model requires the input of subjective assumptions.
Changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subjected to tax in different tax
jurisdictions. Significant judgement and estimates is
required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 5. BAGMEFRHUEE)

(Continued)

5.2 Critical judgements 5.2 EXHHE
Merger accounting BB L
The Reorganisation has been reflected in these SHEHEASHETHER A B R
financial statements using merger accounting and xR -MEBECERKRKEH
management has exercised significant judgement ﬁﬁ CABEAREFEREE TSNS
in determining that the subsidiaries now comprising ARAIEEREIAREZ BB TK
the Group have been under common control of KTﬁuﬁﬁX;Z%higgx/jj&H? il
the Founding Shareholders on collective basis as (FERFIzE2) ©

a result of unwritten agreements between those
shareholders as described in note 2.

6. Revenue and Other Income 6. ggé%é\ﬂluﬂg)\%ﬁ(w*y)mqy)\(j
. s . R ME 5= - 3 \ I\
An analysis of the revenue from the Group’s principal 7%$%H§U\)&E{%H&)\E’\Jﬁ$ﬁﬁﬂ—lt

activities (note 1), which is also the Group’s turnover,
and other income are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2009
2009 &
HK$'000
FEIT
Revenue A
Sales of goods EmiHE 206,560 162,831
Freight income BERA 1,635 1,680
208,195 164,511
Other income He A \
Interest income on financial assets not at WIFRAFEF A BRI T REE
fair value through profit or loss — bank  EMF BUWA — BITFEBUHA
interest income . 33 121
Interest income on financial assets at fair XA FEFABRN SR EEN
value through profit or loss FLEWA 96 1,824
Total interest income F B A 4258 129 1,945
Commission income BaA 12 36
Exchange gain PEE Uz — 433
Fair value gain on financial instruments &g T A QA F(E WS 501 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEWZE « BE &K REA KR
equipment N — 13
Bad debt recovery AR D 9 160
Sundry income FIFBA 76 70
727 2,657
Total income A 208,922 167,168
Information about major customers FEEFHNER
During the year, there were two (2009: three) customers FR HEMBL000F: =%)ER
from the Group’s Sourcing Business (as defined in note ESEB(ERRNINER E/K
7), each of whom contributed 10% or more of the Group’s EEBERAWAI0%KIA FBE - B
total revenue. Revenue derived from these two customers REE - REZMEEPBWAER &
during the year amounted to HK$104,040,000 and 104,040,000 7% 7T K2 55,269,000 7% 7t.(2009
HK$55,269,000 (2009: HK$67,160,000, HK$62,134,000 F : 67,160,000 7T * 62,134,0007%8 7T &
and HK$19,144,000) individually. 19,144,0007&7T) °
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Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
sourcing and procurement solutions to customers for
production of watches, costume jewelries, and display
and packaging products (the “Sourcing Business”) which
is identified as a reportable segment, the operating result
over which has been regularly reviewed by the executive
directors in assessing the performance of the Group and
making decision for resource allocation. In respect of
Sourcing Business, the Group provides customers with a
wide range of sourcing management solutions including
product design and product development, raw materials
and components sourcing and production outsourcing;
and procurement management solutions including quality
assurance and control, logistics and delivery handling
services. The products are mainly exported to overseas
countries.

Pursuant to the Group’s strategy to develop watch
business in the PRC, the Group acquired Tianhaiba on
1 February 2010 (note 30) and has since March 2010
started the selling of watches under Tianba and Harpo
brands in the PRC with the necessary permission. On
30 June 2010, Tianhaiba entered into agreements with a
PRC entity to acquire from the PRC entity the trademarks
of Tianba and Harpo (note 17) and watch inventories
bearing the Tianba and Harpo brands. Pending the
approval process of the relevant government authority
in the PRC regarding the transfer of the trademarks,
Tianhaiba entered into a trademark licence agreement
with the PRC entity on the same date whereby the PRC
entity granted to the Group with immediate effect a
sole and exclusive right to use the Tianba and Harpo
trademarks. As a result, the Group owns the sole and
exclusive right to use the Tianba and Harpo trademarks
and the brands and design of the Tianba and Harpo
watches. Following the acquisition of the Tianba and
Harpo trademarks, the Group has begun to establish
the necessary procurement and production facilities and
its own sales network for the brands in the PRC. Under
this new line of business which is identified as another
reportable segment, the Group designs, manufactures
and distributes its own brands of watches through
the sales points it set up in the PRC (the “PRC Watch
Business”).
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Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenue, segment results and segment
assets

Information regarding the Group’'s reportable operating
segments including the reconciliations to profit before income
tax and total assets are as follows. The operations of the
PRC Watch Business commenced during the year ended
31 December 2010 and thus segment revenue and segment
results reported under the year ended 31 December 2009
entirely related to the Sourcing Business.

Year ended 31 December 2010 #Z20105 12831 H

LHFE
Reportable segment revenue A 5 A
(note (a)) (B13% (a)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A #5285 FI,~
(B18)
Interest income FEMA
Fair value gain on financial SRTAMNA AR

instruments
Corporate income and expenses 1A K& BISZ

Profit before income tax B P45 350 A& A
At 31 December 2010 M 2010F12831H
Reportable segment assets AENEEE
Prepaid tax TERT TR IR
Total assets BEE
Year ended 31 December 2010 EZ2010F12H31H
LHFEE
Other information: Han &R -
Interest expense FEHE
Depreciation of property, plant  ¥% - &= &R &
and equipment &
Addition to non-current assets FMBEERE
(note (b)) (Hte (b))

7. DHERE)
DRBA ~ T HEERDBEE

BRAKEARECEDBOER (B
BRATIS B AT G M AR B EMEBR) T -
R P EEEREFERBE 2010512
A31 BIEFERIREE - BELEE 2009
F12 431 BILFEREND BRA KD
MEERHNENERESE

Sourcing PRC Watch
Business Business Total

ERESX®E TPEERXR Ast

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

200,288 7,907 208,195
22,086 (6,863) 15,223
129

501
(4,102)

11,751

81,804 19,063 100,867
1,552

102,419

30 — 30
1,007 43 1,050
624 6,820 7,444




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited ZIE AP FEBEERADT Annual Report 2010 £ #R 64
S aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaamaaae

2 EBE R (E)
DEWBA - DWEEARDBEE(E)

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7.
Segment revenue, segment results and segment
assets (Continued)

Sourcing PRC Watch

Business Business Total

ERESER APREEER FEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2009 #HZ2009F12H31H

IEEE

Reportable segment revenue A 3RE DS A 164,511 — 164,511

Reportable segment profit Al & 7 & 18,953 — 18,953

Interest income FEUA 1,945
Fair value loss on financial SR TANATEREE

instruments (63)

Corporate income and expenses 12U A KFI (40)
Profit before income tax BR PS5 A& 20,795
At 31 December 2009 7 2009%F12 831 H
Reportable segment assets AIFREDHEE 45,190 — 45,190
Prepaid tax SN 309
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABZNE
through profit or loss BB E 13,983
Derivative financial instruments  #74 4@ T A 22
Total assets BEE 59,504
Year ended 31 December 2009 #EH Z2009F12H31H
ILEE
Other information: H & ¥ -
Interest expense FEMZ 67 — 67
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ - BiE MR
and equipment = 1,207 — 1,207
Impairment on receivables W IERE 234 — 234
Write-down of inventories to WREFEZE]EHF
net realisable value (] 103 — 103
Addition to non-current assets IEMBEERE
(note (b)) (Hte (b)) 1,585 — 1,585
Notes: BiEr

(a) There were no inter-segment sales for the year ended 31
December 2010.

(a) MREZE2010F 128318 IEFE L E
DEPEHEE -

FERBEERBIRYE - BERRER
BREVAE(BEREE -RMBEL
REL BENZFEE) -

(b) Addition to non-current assets represents additions to (b)
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
including those assets arising/acquired from the
acquisition of a subsidiary.
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DEER(E)
DEWBA - DBEERDBEE(E

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7.
Segment revenue, segment results and segment
assets (Continued)
Other than the above, the executive directors regularly
review revenue analysis by products, including watches,
display and packaging materials, and costume jewelries,
which is presented below:

B Lt EIN - ITESEEMEHIRE
on (B ¥R SER - BRIIBREM B R AER
B0 ANT - 25077 ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BHZ12B31BILEE

2010 2009
2010 & 2009 £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Sales of HE
— watches — Bk 113,882 71,790
— display and packaging materials — BRZ| R B EME 71,271 73,246
— costume jewelries — NEKRE 23,042 19,475
208,195 164,511

HEER
FEBMEBEIEMNEB(KILHBE)
AEBE RIS 5 HRAZE P BT
MEBMMBETE - NEBEIZME S 5K
FRDEEREEBERMHMETE -

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
(place of domicile). The Group’s revenue by geographical
locations is determined based on shipment destination
instructed by customers. The Group’s non-current assets
by geographical locations are determined based on
physical location of the assets.

AEBEMEREE DHRARIERS EE
ST ¢

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
by geographical locations are as follows:

Revenue from external

customers
REIEBEF WA Non-current assets
For the year ended FRBEE
31 December At 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE M®12831H
2010 2009 2010

2010 & 2009 F 2010 &£
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Hong Kong B 26,319 22,806
PRC, excluding Hong Kong PR TEEEE 7,932 —
USA EH 93,107 67,315 — —
Europe BM
— Denmark — [ 33,455 19,014 —_ —
— France — EH 7,135 12,893 — —
— ltaly — BAFH 7,648 6,086 — —
— Others — HA 18,444 21,254 — —
Asia Y 4,902 7,636 — —
Others Eb 9,253 7,507 — —
Total FE 208,195 164,511 12,761 6,372
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7. Segment Information (Continued)
The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in Bermuda where the Group does not have
activities. Since the major operations of the Group are
conducted in Hong Kong, Hong Kong is considered as
the Group’s place of domicile for the disclosure purpose
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DEER(E)

ARRR/RASELEXBNEREZ
MM R EZR AT - ARAEBE R
MOEBREBET  BRRBENH
WEEAEBHRMBER WM = KA

of HKFRS 8.

8. Finance Costs

Interest on bank loan and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years

9. Profit Before Income Tax

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AREBERIL T ©
8. MEMX

For the year ended

31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2009
2009
HK$'000
FET

BRI A ) 30 67

9. KRIFGHANER
BRATS B AR AR, GEA) AT &
TRIRZER

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

66

2010 2009
2010 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Auditor’s remuneration %S B & 970 600
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR X AFE &R A 157,944 125,656
Write-down of inventories to net realisable  #UifF &%= Al &3 % (E
value' — 103
Impairment on receivables® JE W R IE A — 234
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - WEREEITE
equipment 1,050 1,207
Exchange loss/(gain) bE H &8, (M) 167 (433)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial SR T AENAFE
instruments? (Mzs), /5182 (501) 63
Listing expenses? EFmA%? 3,581 —
Operating lease charges in respective of M REFHLEHEES
land and building i 861 262
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAFZ
directors’ remuneration): (BRESEMS) :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREMAG 16,896 11,398
Retirement benefit — defined contribution  RIKIEF — EEEERET2)°
plans® 791 623
17,687 12,021
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BB R&ERNE
and equipment? 1B (Uzs)? 3 (13)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment®  #is&¥% - W= & & ° — 38
! included in cost of inventories recognised as expenses ! AR ARAIHFEERA
2 included in other income/other operating expenses on face 2 AAGAEEEREROEAWA i
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income RS

no forfeited contributions available for offset against ¢ FAE A 402 U 3R AT R4 SR A R

existing contributions during the year
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10.

Income Tax Expense

Pacific

10. FIEHiRX

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLFE

2010 2009
2010 £ 2009 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax BVER%ITE — BEFEH
— charge for the year — FRZH 3,963 3,171
— (over)/under provision in prior years — — BEEE (BERE) BE
TR (101) 58
Total income tax expense FriSHiF X 4258 3,862 3,229

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

The Group acquired Tianhaiba, a PRC entity, on 1
February 2010 which is subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the tax rate of 25%. No provision for PRC corporate
income tax has been made as Tianhaiba did not generate
any taxable profits arising in the PRC during the period

BB NS5 F A fh 5 ERBUSE MR
% 16.5% (2009 4F : 16.5% )5 Hi ©

KEFER2010F28 18 KEXET
BRI R 25% BN P B ETER - A
REEBHENHUEE B H##E E 2010512
A 31 B 8 R0 72 B EE A (R B AR
Boas U ELPECEMBHRED

from the date of its acquisition to 31 December 2010.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at applicable tax rate

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of utilising unrecognised tax
losses

Tax effect of tax loss not recognised

(Over)/Under provision in prior years

Others

Income tax expense for the year

B e

AREAH

PS5 FA S S & 7 st A 1R 8 A AR =R 9

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLFE

2010 2009
2010 & 2009 £
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
bR PT1S 7 A s A 11,751 20,795
BEAR R ENRIE 1,358 3,431
AR B S R TS s 2 1,317 53
BERBBRANTH BT E (110) (272)
FRARERHRISE BN
wE — (55)
RERBRIEE BN & 1,081 58
BEFE(REREE) BETR (101) 58
EHAth 317 (44)
FAMBRAS 3,862 3,229
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10.

11.

12.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The Group had unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$598,000 (2009: HK$460,000)
to carry forward against future taxable income and these
tax losses do not expire under current legislation. In
addition, the Group had unrecognised tax losses arising
in the PRC of approximately HK$4,382,000 which will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect the unused tax losses incurred by certain
group entities due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the Company
Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$7,563,000 (2009: HK$16,498,000), a
profit of HK$3,000,000 (2009: Nil) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

Dividends

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
since its incorporation except for the 2010 final dividend
proposed as detailed below. Dividends declared and
paid by Good Destination and Powerwell Pacific to their
then shareholders during the year are summarised as
follows:

10.

11.

12.
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FEHExZ(E)

75 (B 4 B DA 8 R 2R IE AR B U A B9 R
R E 8 5 598,000 78 7T (2009 4F :
460,000 7T) * MARBIRITEBIZ S
BB TEER - o REERFEH
EAMARERTIEEEL A4,832,000
PEITTIAIR SRR FERF R ) - R AF
NEme BERE TEEETERE R R &
MRENTHREUECELEN KRB ARG
B e M ERIELETFRIBEEE -

AABEE ABERF

KRFEHEE ANEEERE & F 7,563,000
77T (2009 4F : 16,498,000 7)) - %
713,000,000 75 (20094 : T ) B2 R A
RNEIMIIERRERE -

RE

BTN XFrafit g 2010F EZZ A HAKE
G RN R B H R Ak S A R I 8 R
MEIREE - NABBERRK - Good
Destination }z Powerwell Pacific A1H &
R R =R ROR AT AR Bt an s

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

68

2010 2009
2010 % 2009 F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividend declared and paid by BEEREEMKRE - WHMBA
subsidiaries (note (b)): RIS (M (b))
Interim dividend paid to: BT ATHFRERRKS
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZS DN 4,180 16,354
Owners of non-controlling interests FEIEFIERER A — 2,085
Special dividend R B 9,896 —
Dividend paid to Founding Shareholders 2t &I%AM R B BB (4157 (a))
(note (a)) 225 —
14,301 18,439
Dividend proposed by the Company: RATFIKRE. -
Final dividend proposed for the year FREZERIKRE
— HK2.0 cents (2009: Nil) per ordinary  — &RRE @A 2.0 7810
share (note (c)) (20094 : &) (M5t (c)) 3,000 —
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12.

13.

Pacific

Dividends (Continued)
Notes:

(a) On 20 September 2010, the Group acquired from the
Founding Shareholders 10,000 shares, which represent
10% of the issued capital, of Richmind, a subsidiary, at a
total cash consideration of HK$225,400. The transaction is
accounted for as a dividend distribution to the Founding
Shareholders.

(b)  The rate of dividend and the number of shares ranking for
dividends paid by the subsidiaries are not presented as
such information is considered not meaningful.

(c) The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2010 which is subject to the approval by the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The rate of
dividend is determined based on the number of shares in
issue of 150,000,000 upon the listing of the Company on
26 January 2011 (note 28(f)).

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2010 is based on the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company amounting to
HK$7,563,000 (2009: HK$16,498,000) and on the basis of
108,000,000 (2009: 108,000,000) shares of the Company
in issue, being the number of shares in issue immediately
after the completion of capitalisation issue as detailed in
note 28(e), throughout the years.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as
there is no outstanding potential ordinary share at the
reporting date.

12.

13.

RE (&)
Htaz

(a) M201049 A208 A& &M Al Ik
RUEER(—HEKE2RE) 210,000
A (BB BEITIRAN10%) » #IBEHR
B4 2254007870 - RS ABRED IR T
BIZA R F B8R -

(b) AFEILEZAHMER RSB
BEEREAREMEMNEE - RER
HEBRREIERES

(c) BEE=ZFEMEE2010F12831H I1E
FEIRMNABRE R 2.081L - ALK
BRRREEREEFAS LA - BRE
RIRAN AT 20104 1 A 26 B L (B
£ 28(f)) & B % 17 #9 150,000,000 A% i
BE-

BREF
EREARBADBEARGESF A
fE 15 % #17,563,0007 JT(20094F :
16,498,000 7T ) * LA & & " K A &
2 % 17 A% 19 108,000,000 A% (2009 4 :
108,000,000 f% ) (BN FA Z g & A 1L T K
BHEBRTROHE ) TEGER M
28(e)) °

HRAERS ARYE D ARETOEEE
B WA BT BREERN -




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited & AT ¥ EEERAT Annual Report 2010 F R 70
S aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaamaaae

14. Directors’ Remuneration and Five Highest Paid 14. EERIEEBRSH A THEHH
Individuals
Directors’ remuneration EEHM
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit
Fees bonuses in kind costs Total
R 41
ok WAL RENAZ BABRRA @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE FEn FET FE FE
Year ended BZ201012A31H
31 December 2010 LFE
Executive directors: HITESE -
Liu Tin Chak, Arnold BXE — — 613 22 635
Wong Yu Man, Elias 09 - - 613 22 635
Lam Chi Wai, Peter &R - — 613 22 635
Yang Yijun B—E — — — — —
Independent non-executive 17 FEH7TEE -
directors:
Cheung Chi Man, Dennis ~ 3R& X — — — — —
Lui Tai Lok EPNE - — - - -
Yip Kwok Kwan HEH - - - - -
— — 1,839 66 1,905
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit
Fees bonuses in kind costs Total
e 2R
fikn WiETEa REWMFE  RIKEAKA @ar
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
Year ended BZE2009F12A31H
31 December 2009 LEE
Executive directors: HITEF -
Liu Tin Chak, Arnold BRE — 200 528 22 750
Wong Yu Man, Elias E0 08 — 200 589 20 809
Lam Chi Wai, Peter MEE = 200 589 20 809
Yang Yijun H—= — — — — —
Independent non-executive ¥ FEH7TEE :
directors:
Cheung Chi Man, Dennis ~ 3&k7& — — — — —
Lui Tai Lok B A - — — — —
Yip Kwok Kwan HEFH Y = — _ _ _
— 600 1,706 62 2,368
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14. Directors’ Remuneration and Five Highest Paid
Individuals (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals consisted of three
(2009: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of
remuneration of the remaining two (2009: two) highest
paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2010
are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & « 2B R EYH

Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL
Retirement benefits — defined RIREA —
contribution plans TE R KA &

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
individuals for the year fell within the following bands:

Nil — HK$1,000,000

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

£ % 1,000,000 % 7T

14, EERABESHFALNHME)

hEBREHFAL
hEmaHFALTBE=Z/A(2000F : =
H)EE - BRAFEBER EXFH ST H
Bk o PEZE2010F 12 A 31 HILEE -
HHEMA (20095 - A )Ha#ATH
HFEFIBIR

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLFE

2010 2009
2010 5 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
1,888 1,144

24 24

1,912 1,168

FRAEMNNR ERIFEEMER A LEO M
BRATEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2010 2009
2010 & 2009 £
2 2

FARAALEETAESHELRBHREEM
a2tk -

AEEVERNETHEIMNEZRSHA
TXAERBE - ER B F BRI
BN RS ) SR B S BB A (E
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. M%¥ - BERZE
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold  fixtures and Plant and Motor
buildings improvements  equipment machinery vehicles Total
BE RE
IHRET BEXE kR HERES RE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET FiET TET TET

At 1 January 2009 20091418
Cost A 4,006 608 1,669 3,861 630 10,774
Accumulated depreciation ZEHIME (614) (344) (1,072) (2,033) (630) (4,693)
Net carrying amount EHFE 3,392 264 597 1,828 — 6,081
Year ended 31 December 2009 Z 2009 &

12A31 ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ F#HEFE 3,392 264 597 1,828 = 6,081
Additions RE 1,150 17 397 21 — 1,585
Depreciation e (116) (91) (250) (750) — (1,207)
Disposal HE — — (49) — — (49)
Write-off e = (36) () = — (38)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FARBEFE 4,426 154 693 1,099 = 6,372
At 31 December 2009 ®2009512A31H
Cost AR 5,156 368 1,396 3,882 630 11,432
Accumulated depreciation 2FHE (730) (214) (703) (2,783) (630) (5,060)
Net carrying amount FEFE 4,426 154 693 1,099 = 6,372
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ 2010

12A31ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ FAIIREFE 4,426 154 693 1,009 — 6,372
Additions RE — 9 1,421 129 — 1,646
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—FRHBAR

(note 30) (H1i£30) — = 13 = = 13

Depreciation i (116) (88) (341) (505) — (1,050)
Disposal HE — — () = = (5)
Closing net carrying amount E&RHEFE 4,310 162 1,781 723 = 6,976
At 31 December 2010 R2010512 8318
Cost AR 5,156 464 2,822 4,011 630 13,083
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (846) (302) (1,041) (3,288) (630) (6,107)
Net carrying amount BEFE 4,310 162 1,781 728 — 6,976
The Group’s interests in land and buildings are located in AEEHN L REFERHIMNRES
Hong Kong and are held under medium-term leases. WA ERFR AR o
No properties were pledged to secure any bank R|MEBR - HEYES THEM - A
borrowings at the reporting date. As at 31 December BV $R1TE K - A 2009F 12 5311 -
2009, certain properties with carrying amount of FRE{E 2,430,000 T ETHUXE T
HK$2,430,000 were pledged to secure the bank TR LERASE/RTEEE
borrowings of the Group (note 27). 27) °
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Goodwill

Year ended 31 December 2010

16. BHE

HK$°000
FET

HZ2010F12 831 BLLEE

Opening net carrying amount FHREFE —
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —RM B A A 230
Closing net carrying amount FREREFE 230
As at 31 December 2010 M2010F12 831 H

Cost BXA 230
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE —
Net carrying amount BRERE 230

Goodwill arises from the acquisition of Tianhaiba on 1
February 2010 (note 30). The goodwill as well as other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives as mentioned
in note 17 are allocated to the cash generating unit of
PRC Watch Business, which has just commenced during
the year ended 31 December 2010.

The goodwill is tested for impairment as at 31 December
2010 based on value in use calculation using cash flow
projection and no impairment is being identified. The
cash flow projection is based on the forecast approved
by the directors covering a period of 5 years and the
discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is 14%,
which reflects specific risk relating to the PRC Watch
Business. Growth rate used in the projection is 7% which
reflects the long-term average growth rate of the PRC
Watch Business.

Other Intangible Assets

Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net carrying amount
Addition NE

Closing net carrying amount
As at 31 December 2010
Cost B AR

Accumulated amortisation/impairment

Net carrying amount

FRIREFE

Rt RE
SRMEFHE

EEGENR2010FE2 A1 BKEXEH
(FIE30)MELE o B KM 172 A
AETERFRAUFERAFHENELEE D
e FEREE2010F 12 A31HILFE
FIRA P HEREBNIRSEEEN -

MN2010F 12 A31H BEFEHES R
TR EREEETRENR  EITE
HIRBE - BeREAZRESIAENS
FHBAGE  MERARNRESRBAN
BEIR KR B14% @ RIRA R B G2 8k ¥ 75
METERERE - BREINERERAE7% -
?B%EE%EP BEFESHRHTIFHER

17. EfbBREE

Trademarks

1=

HK$°000
FET

BZ2010512 831 BLEE
FHEREFE

5,555

5,555

M2010%F12A31H

5,555

5,555
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17.

18.

Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

On 30 June 2010, Tianhaiba entered into an agreement
with a PRC entity to acquire from the PRC entity the
Tianba and Harpo trademarks at a total consideration
of RMB4,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,345,000). The PRC entity is owned by the brother
of the Company’s director, Mr. Yang Yijun. Pending the
approval process of the relevant government authority
in the PRC regarding the transfer of the trademarks,
Tianhaiba entered into a trademark licence agreement
with the PRC entity on the same date whereby the PRC
entity granted to the Group with immediate effect a
sole and exclusive right to use the Tianba and Harpo
trademarks.

As at the date of the report, the legal procedures for
transferring the trademarks to the Group are not yet
completed. As assessed by the directors, the outstanding
procedures are customary and nothing has come to their
attention that would hinder the completion of the transfer.
Taking into account the advice from the Company’s PRC
legal advisor, the directors are of the opinion that the
Group is able to generate economic benefit from the
Tianba and Harpo trademarks since the signing of the
trademark licence agreement on 30 June 2010, even if
the transfer of the two trademarks shall not be approved
by the relevant government authority.

The directors consider these trademarks having indefinite
useful lives as there is no foreseeable limit on the period
of time over which the trademarks in watch industry is
expected to provide cash flows. These trademarks can
be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the
products are continuing in the market.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

17.

18.

FEETMRD - AR

Annual Report 2010 £ R

HtEEEEGE)

MR2010%F 68 30H ' KEBHE—FRF
EEE Y —HaE WaZxTEEE
WERXBEREEHE  BREREAA
R # 4,700,000 7t (#) % 1A 5,345,000 78
Jo) e ZHFEERBARIESE —FL
ERRRBHEE - FPEREEREE
Pt EREEEENREFERE - X
BHBNRIB EZPEERT Y BT
BHE BHZPEEBRAEERE

ME—RBRENERXFNEFEER

H iz B R BIR A2 -

RAIRE BH - MAEEEZEIZHE
ERRFEATK KEZFMHE MK
TN DIEERF BFEELM
BEIMEESHREENTR - &2
BARRRBRZEEZBEMMNER R 5
RAe MERBREFEEZNEETE
BT E - NEB B 2010F 6
A 30 A &G EiZaT o] o LA SR IRge 1 5%
9 18] i 12 B A B 25 e

EEZARULFERAIRFRAERF
B RERZFAERNEERZAEHT
BERHRSAVAUBERHERS - thF
IR UBREXNANEE —BRERH - BE
AT I5 BT o

RHBARNERE
Company
AT
2010 2009
2010 & 2009 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FEIT

30,367 —

74
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, which
are private companies with limited liability, as at 31
December 2010 are as follows:

Country/ Place of
incorporation/

Name establishment
=18
Powerwell Pacific  British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")
HBRIES
(TRBRZES])
Good Destination  BVI
RERLEE
Goldnet BVI BVI
REBRIEE
Goldnet HK Hong Kong
S EB BB
Display & Hong Kong
Packaging B
Limited
EC Manufacturing Hong Kong
Limited 5
REBLERR AR
Prestige Hong Kong
Corporation a8
Limited
ERARAT]
EC (Asia) Limited Hong Kong

%%&(Eﬁfﬂ‘\ JER™ BB

Particulars of issued
and fully paid share
capital/registered
capital

E%mi/m4l§/6¥ TRSERA, =
i Bh MERFEE

800 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
800 & A E 1 £7T

Rgti]

4 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

ARGREE 1 ETTH
=R il

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100 IR AR EIfE 1 7T
EORER N

100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
100 IR AR EI 1B
1A TTH TR

300,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

300,000 & X EIE
1B TR S AR

10,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

10,000 IR B AR E (B
1A TTH SRR

10,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

10,000 I AR E A
1T E R

500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

500,000 f& &A% E &
18R E AR

REBARNRE (&)
MN2010FE 12 A31H » XATIHEBA A
(BWAABRAG)KFIBFNOT :

Effective interest
held by the
Company
KRB EFEW
BERER
Directly Indirectly
HE D3

100% =

Principal activities

FEXK

Investment holding

B

100% — Investment holding

BREER

100% — Investment holding

AR

100% — Investment holding

BREER

— 100% Trading of display
and packaging
materials and
products

BAEBRIIBEMH K

IIIIII
= 100% Manufacturing of
handmade watch
sample and
supply of watch
accessories
35 A EB IR M &
L e S SR D B

Trading of watches
and accessories

BEERNMECH

— 100%

— 100% Trading of watches
and accessories

B R
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of issued
and fully paid share

Country/ Place of

incorporation/ capital/registered

Name establishment capital
EHJ&EJZ_L/EJZ_LI%K/Eﬁ TRBERAE ZF
£B It B MERFE
Ampress Pacific ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary
Limited BB shares of HK$1
MK FF=FRR each
A 10,000 & & AXE {8
1B TR E AR
Ampress Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary
Packaging BB shares of HK$1
Limited each
100,000 IR G R EE
7B T A AR
Richmind Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary
=N e shares of HK$1
each
100,000 I G AR EE
1B THE AR
EC Pacific Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary
Limited BB shares of HK$1
RE(KFEF)ER each
~A] 500,000 Iz F AR E 1A
1B TR B
Ampress Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary
Merchandising &% shares of HK$1
Limited each
MEEXFR AR 100,000 iR B AR E &
1AL
Ampress Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary
Packaging Asia &% shares of HK$1
Limited each
MEgvE(RMA 500,000 iz B ik E &
[N 1A TTR AR
Powerwell Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary
Finance Limited &/ shares of HK$1
each
500,000 i & AR TE A 1
P TTEY B AR
TR GEESER  PRC RMB 13,035,000
BRAF] A EY AR % 13,035,000
(Shenzhen
Tianhaiba
Watches
Company
Limited)

(“Tianhaiba”)*
YT RGFHERE
RAR([REHE]

# Tianhaiba was established on 23 June 2009 as a PRC
domestic enterprise and was converted into a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise upon acquisition by the Group
on 1 February 2010 (note 30).

18. RHMBLARMWRE(E)

Effective interest

held by the

Comp any Principal activities
KRBFHW

BRERS FEEHK

Directly Indirectly

H#E

D3
100% Trading of display
and packaging

products
BEERIIBER

90% Trading of display
and packaging
products

BERIIBEM

100% Holding of properties

SEERYE S

100% Trading of watches
and accessories

BEEERNMECH

100% Trading of watches,
costume jewelries
and accessories

EEERK - ANEKE
T Be &

Trading of display
and packaging
products

BERIIBEKM

100%

100% Trading of
investment

E\Ejiéf

100% Sales of watches in
the PRC

A B 5 3 ik

KBEHEF 200946 23 K AT
BAME  WR2010FE28 18K K
FEEWERR ARG ABINGEE D (HF
30) °
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Inventories
Raw materials FRAF
Finished goods X G

On 30 June 2010, the Group acquired watch inventories
bearing the Tianba and Harpo brands (finished goods) at
HK$5,492,000 from the PRC entity as mentioned in note
17.

Trade Receivables, Prepayments and Deposits

19. #&
Group
REE
2009
2009
HK$000
FET
6,903 1,132
9,509 310
16,412 1,442

SN FE17 At - ANEE R 2010F 6 A30H
LA5,492,0008 M B E BN XS &8
FEE(KR)NEFE -

20. ESEWANE - AARERRE

Group

rEH
2010 2009
2010 2009 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 W KIE 25,595 21,060
Less: provision for impairment W R ERE (1,020) (1,029)
Trade receivables — net B o Eih e — F5E 24,575 20,031

Prepayment of professional fees in BITROEEENEERE

relation to issue of shares A 11,770 —
Other prepayment and deposits Hin BN HRIERES 7,087 1,583
18,857 1,583
43,432 21,614

The Group normally allows credit period of 45 to 60 days
to its major customers. Credit period is normally not
granted to other customers.

The ageing analysis (based on due date) of the Group’s
trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

Not past due K461 HA

1-30 days past due #HI1-30 K
31-60 days past due #1H131-60 X
61-90 days past due #HI61-90 X
Over 90 days past due BHEI90 KA £

AEE—MAEETEEFHTI45E60K
MEEH - —REH TeREMLER
BT E=E8-

RBERH - AEEE S REFRRE
HARRESITT ¢

Group

R EE
2009
2009
HK$'000
TFET
17,225
2,321
328

1,103

21,060
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20. Trade Receivables, Prepayments and Deposits 20. EZRWRRNIE BARERRESE)

(Continued)
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FAEEH

Bad debt recovery AR
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE
Amount written-off [mE 6l
Balance at end of the year FREER

At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. The Group identified impairment loss
on trade receivables amounting to HK$1,020,000 (2009:
HK$1,029,000) as at 31 December 2010. The impaired
trade receivables were due from customers experiencing
financial difficulties that were in default or delinquency
of payments and impairment provision amounting to
HK$1,020,000 (2009: HK$1,029,000) were made. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security or other
credit enhancements over the impaired trade receivables,
whether determined on an individual or collective basis.

The ageing analysis (based on due date) of the Group’s
trade receivables that were past due at the reporting
date but are not considered as impaired is as follows:

Not past due R HR

1 — 30 days past due #HI1-30 K
31 — 60 days past due #1H131-60 %
61 — 90 days past due #HI61-90 X
Over 90 days past due BHEI90 KA

BHRWFIEREREHEESNT

Group
REH
2010 2009
2010 5 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,029 979
(9) (160)
— 234
— (24)
1,020 1,029

REREAH  AEEeRERRES
EERN EEEEERARNERIBRE -
MN2010F 12 A31H » REB D #H I
H 5 e N FIER B & 18 & 1,020,000 7
(20094 : 1,029,000/ 7T ) » & W 1E
EoREKNFELAEMGRY RRENTF
ik sk i BRI 3R 0 B B R R E
/1,020,000 7% 7t (2009 £F : 1,029,000 7%
J0) o AEEWERIZE RISk irE EEE
EMEREEZ ZRRREFEETAER
ERFEMIREEREOERR -

RBERH  AREEBRERERR
AR E P RUGRIRIRE B B W RRER D
T

Group
REE
2010 2009
2010 5 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
22,174 17,225
2,378 2,321
13 328
10 83
— 74
24,575 20,031
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20. Trade Receivables, Prepayments and Deposits

21.

(Continued)

Trade receivables that were not yet past due and that
were past due but not impaired related to a number of
customers that had a good track record of credit with the
Group. Based on past credit experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold
any collateral in respect of trade receivable past due but
not impaired.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate their fair values.

Amounts Due from Related Parties
Details of the amounts due from the related parties are
as follows:

Year ended 31 December BZ2010F12H31H

2010 LEE

Directors EE

Liu Tin Chak, Arnold BRZ

Wong Yu Man, Elias ELX

Lam Chi Wai, Peter MEE

Other related party B A £

Hana Time (Asia) Limited ER (M) BRAF
(note (a)) (H1aE (a)

20.

21.

B RWHEA AARERRE(H)

BB BEREER RRMENE 5 RUKKA
HERAREEELERFNARETREA
AEFARM RBEEEERKR &2
EBHRE AN EEERYEEAEHA
REARDRRE 280 E - RLBAS
AFREBRIERERE -  AKEXERD
BEMERHUR RIRE R B 5 YR IR
BEMERR

EERA EHRWFENREESREE
RFEEE -

FE Wk B B A+ FRIR
FEUBARE A TR BT

EVdu T

amount
outstanding
during the

year
FRERS
HMAREBERSE
HK$°000
FExT

Opening
outstanding
balance
ERILES
HERRR
HK’000
FET

Closing
outstanding
balance
FRIE AR
EESR
HK’000
FET

38 38 —
151 151 —
111 111 —_
247 247 —

547 —_
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21. Amounts Due from Related Parties (Continued) 21. FEWEEBATRIEE)
Maximum
amount
outstanding Opening Closing
during the outstanding outstanding
year balance balance
FAREEA FYEKREER FIEER
EESRH Sk Eyet=is
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET FEIT
Year ended 31 December BZE2009F12H31H
2009 IEFE
Directors =
Liu Tin Chak, Arnold BRZ 38 — 38
Wong Yu Man, Elias 097 151 — 151
Lam Chi Wai, Peter MEE 111 — 111
Other related parties H i EgE A+
Owner of non-controlling FEIEHIER AR A
interests (note (b)) (5 (b)) 50 50 —
Hana Time (Asia) Limited ZER(EMBRAF
(note (a)) (K13 (a)) 366 — 247
50 547
Notes: B
(a) The director, Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter, is connected to this (a) EBEMEREEBRZEENRGHE -

related company.
(b) BAMATHAZLTAER—KHEBRRH
(b) The related party is Ms. Tam who was the then owner & E 2 (25 ) B IR A T8 FE 12 & #E 2s
of the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, Ampress BA o
Packaging Asia Limited.

The above balances due are unsecured, non-interest LR g AEER - A RERE
bearing and repayable on demand. The directors KEEEE - BER 5 ZEE4NET
consider that the carrying amounts of the balances BEEENFERE -
approximate their fair values.
22. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or 22. RAFEAEENLHEE
Loss
Group
F5HE

2010 2009
2010 5 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET

Dual currency investments EITEBIRE — 13,983
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22. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (Continued)

Details about the dual currency investments as at 31
December 2009 are as follows:

22. RAVEFABRSNESRMEEHE)

RS TEIRER2009F 12 831 H
MBI

At 31 December 2009
R 2009412 A31H
One US$ contract Two CAD contracts

—ETER RN &4
—  334,000/1,066,000
505,000 —

US$/Australian
dollars (“AUD"/“A$”)
o,/ B ([Bx])

December 2009 to
January 2010

CAD/AUD
o,/ S’

December 2009 to
January 2010

Notional amount per contract BHEANEERSE
Canadian dollars (“CAD"/“C$") pnzT(lnrel)
Uss$ =T

Currency pair BB E
(principal currency/alternative (EE2H%
currency) HinEH)

Contract period A HHA

Interest rate =

Redemption amount EDeRE

Fair value at year end (HK$'000) FERNFE(FET)

The dual currency investments are to be settled either
in principal currency or the alternative currency at pre-
determined amount, depending on the exchange rate of
the currencies prevailing at the redemption date.

The dual currency investments are stated at fair values
which are measured as described in notes 5 and 35.

200912 A% 2009 12 A%
201041 A 201041 A
4.0% p.a. 4.0% p.a.
HFF4.0% FF4.0%
US$506,710/ Contract 1
A$576,331 C$334,986/
506,710 % 7T A$ 353,622
/576,331 870 a8
334,986 N7T

/353,622 87T

Contract 2

C$1,070,406/

A$1,128,287

&2

1,070,406 7T

/1,128,287 #7T

3,886 10,097

BFREEARBITHER BTG
RERAECBNTIEERLHMER
e o

A T

ETERREL N FEIR - THIEMES
K 35T T A E o
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23. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 23. fTEEMIAE)
The derivative financial instruments comprise the
following forward foreign exchange contracts:

Annual Report 2010 £ %%
e

TESRMTEABRUATHEIINESL

Group
rEH
2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Strip of TT bullish structure contracts TTE=SEEREIEH — 22

The notional amount of the strip of TT bullish structure
contracts varies from US$10,000 to US$250,000. The
contract period is one year in general. The amount to
be settled by the Group on maturity date depends on
the exchange rate of US$ against HK$ on the maturity
date. The contracts would knock out when the pre-set
conditions occur which are affected by the fluctuation of
HK$ against US$.

The derivative financial instruments are stated at fair
values which are measured as described in notes 5 and
5.

24. Bank Balances and Cash 24.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Included in bank balances
and cash of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was a
balance of HK$1,714,000 which is denominated in RMB.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency.

25. Trade and Other Payables 25.

Trade payables (note (a)) B SN (H 7 (a)
Other payables and accruals
(note (b))

Deposits received

(H1#E (b))
B S

TTETEEHABAUSYINEESER
10,0007 E 250,000 T 5 - A4
H—RAE—F AEBEBERIBALEE
NEBRETREEHBEETEBITHER -
ERAEIBLAETRZENTERIE
B - S4B EEUH °

PSRBT BIRATEIE - THIRHES
B35 AR TR 8 -

RITERRES

RITFFIRIZ S IRITF R A F R BEEF
B R2010F 128318 ' st AKEE
RITEBR MBS AR ARBENGS
1,714,000/87C - ARBISERILIA -

B 5 K E B RRIE

Hib AR E R

Group

REE
2010 2009
2010 & 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
33,609 15,686
18,753 1,876
16,441 1,033
68,803 18,595

82



Pacific

83

25. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 25. BSRHEMEMRKEGRE)
Notes: B EE -
(a) The ageing analysis of trade payable (based on due date) (a) RMEAHE  BEHEMNRERIBHALN
at the reporting date is as follows: RECDTIAT
2010 2009
PIGE:S 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Not past due R HR 14,057 5,777
1-30 days past due #HEI1-30 K 9,803 5,712
31-60 days past due #H131-60 K 9,707 3,751
61-90 days past due #HI61-90 K 42 100
Over 90 days past due BHIO0 KA | — 346
33,609 15,686
Included in trade payables was an amount of HK$919,000 S AE S E N R IE A919,000 7T
(2009: HK$861,000) which was due to a PRC entity, (20094 : 861,000 7T) * AEN—F
Guifeng (as defined in note 31), in which Mr. Yang Yijun, hEEEEE(EE BE31) (AT
director of the Company, has equity interest. REEER B ENEPHEARAE
%) EFIE o
(b) Other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2010 (b) 20104 12 A 31 H & H b f& 1+ ;18
included an amount of approximately HK$8,177,000 REASEEAERKE LHF R EHN
which arises from the acquisition of the Tianba and Harpo (M E17) R B XS N AH G ED
trademarks (note 17) and the watch inventories bearing EETEMFIOMEENLSELY
the Tianba and Harpo brands (note 19). 8,177,000 T °
(c) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade (c) BEERA ZHRHEMEMNZFENER
and other payables approximate their fair values. BEEAEANTERSE
26. Amounts Due from Subsidiaries 26. FEUWHE N FRIE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and FEWRB AT RBAEEW 28 KA
repayable on demand. The directors consider that the HEREE S %%wuz\% RE S
carrying amounts of the balances approximate their fair B EEEN ?TE*H
values.
27. Bank Loans 27. RITEX
Group
rEE
2009
2009 F
HK$’009
FET
Bank loans RITER
Repayable within one year AR—FNEE — 55
Repayable in the second year ARB_FEE — 58
Repayable in the third to fifth year, ARE=EFRF(B2IEE
inclusive EME)EE — 193
Repayable after the fifth year ARRFREER — 370
— 676
Analysed into: DR
Current portion due within one year —FNE|ERBEAEE 5 (5T
included under current liabilities AREBERE) — 55
Non-current portion included under FERNERER (BT AFEREN &
non-current liabilities &) — 621
— 676




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited ZIE AP FEBEERADT

27.

28.

Bank Loans
The bank loans as at 31 December 2009 were
denominated in HK$ and were secured by the following:

(a) charges on certain properties of the Group with
carrying amount of HK$2,430,000 (notes 15);

(b) guarantees by the directors; and
(c) corporate guarantees from certain group entities.

The effective interest rates applicable to the bank
loans as at 31 December 2009 were floating interest
rates ranging 3.58% to 5.33% per annum. The
directors estimated the fair values of the bank loans by
discounting their expected cash flows at the market rates
of comparable financial instruments and the directors
considered that the carrying amounts of the Group’s
current and non-current bank loans approximated their
fair values at 31 December 2009. The bank loans were
early repaid by the Group during the year.

Share Capital

Authorised: EE

27.

28.

Annual Report 2010 £ %%

MITER
M2009FE 12 A308 @ RITERIAB T
FHE - WA TFIZ BRI -

(a) AKBERMEER2430,000% T
HETORER(HZ15)

(b) EEFER: &
(c) ETHEEEBHDAER -

MN2009F 12 A31 8 fITEFZEAY
BEEANZE AN F3.58% £ 5.33% K25
FHR - EFRAULBELHMTAMER
REFBHBESRRATIENBEENRD
- WiRA o ANEBEEVE N IEBNHAE
ER2009F 12 A1 HBEmERAE A
FEBE AEEBRAFEERFEEE
RITER -

Upon incorporation, ordinary shares of
HK$1 each (note (a))
Share sub-division (note (b))

Increase in authorised capital, ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each (note (d))

At 31 December 2010, ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully paid:

Upon incorporation, ordinary shares of
HK$1 each (note (a))

Share Sub-division (note (a) & (b))

Issue of shares, ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each (note (c))

At 31 December 2010, ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

REEMARILE - SR B
1 BT (HaE (a))
Wetn 2 ¥ (Hfat (b))

EINEERA - SECE B
0.1 BTT(fet (d))

2010512 831 BER
EEIRO0.18 T

ORTRAR :

KM B - B TR
18T (Kt (a))

BB 35 (KTt (a) & (b))

BTG - BREAER
0.1 BTT(#at (c))

A2010FE12 831 BER
EERO0.158 T

&N

Number

of ordinary
shares Nominal value
ZEREAE HE
HKS$
B
100,000 100,000
900,000 —
1,000,000 100,000
999,000,000 99,900,000
1,000,000,000 100,000,000
4 4
36 —
40 4
99,960 9,996
100,000 10,000
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28. Share Capital (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

The Company was incorporated on 14 June 2010 with
authorised share capital of HK$100,000 divided into
100,000 shares of HK$1 each, 4 shares of which were
issued nil-paid on 9 July 2010. On 20 December 2010,
with a written resolution of the sole shareholder of the
Company, the directors were authorised to apply a sum of
HK$4 being part of the amount credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company arising from the issue
of shares referred to notes (b) and (c) below to pay up in
full at par the 4 shares (become 40 shares after the Share
Sub-division as mentioned in (b) below) issued nil-paid on
9 July 2010.

By a written resolution of the Company dated 20
December 2010, each of the existing issued and unissued
shares of HK$1 each in the share capital of the Company
was sub-divided into 10 shares of HK$0.10 each (“Share
Sub-division”. The authorised share capital of the
Company then become HK$100,000 divided into 1,000,000
share of HK$0.1 each.

On 20 December 2010, an aggregate of 50,000 shares
were alloted and issued, credited as fully paid, to Data
Champion Limited as consideration for the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Good Destination and
Goldnet BVI from the Founding Shareholders. On the same
date, an aggregate of 49,960 shares were alloted and
issued, credited as fully paid, to Data Champion Limited
as consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Powerwell Pacific from the Founding
Shareholders and Ms. Tam.

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 22
December 2010, the authorised share capital of the
Company is increased from HK$100,000, divided into
1,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, to HK$100,000,000,
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, by the
creation of additional 999,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 22
December 2010, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited as a result
of the Placing as mentioned and defined in (f) below,
HK$10,790,000 of such amount was directed to
be capitalised and applied in paying up in full at
par 107,900,000 shares for allotment and issue to
shareholders of the Company (the “Capitalisation”). Upon
the Capitalisation, the issued share capital of the Company
would become HK$10,800,000 divided into 108,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each.

On 26 January 2011, 42,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1
each of the Company were issued to the public by way
of placing at HK$0.80 each (the “Placing”). Upon the
Capitalisation and the Placing, the issued share capital of
the Company would become HK$15,000,000 divided into
150,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

28. BRAR(E)

Bt
(a)

(d)

®

AN QA R2010F6 A 14 8 5 it &K a2
3 SRERR A A100,0008 7T 0 H A
100,000 xS EE 1B TR G - &
FARE R 201047 A9 B AR
R EIT R20106128208 0 1B
BAQARBE—BRRMN—BEERER
EEERESHE T X (b) & (c) E&FAT
MR B EITRG FTEERN AN A BB
BHENIHEREAET - LUREE
2EH BN 201057 A9 HEERITH
AR5 GETT T X (b) ATt B AR 5 2 4
%A A 40 B ) ©

B A DR R2010F 12 208 # —
BEMRHEE © AR RKRATZESRE
BEIBTHNRBEEETRARTRGE
FHAI0REREMEOI10BITH R H
(B IR4E ) o ARBHDEE B A
100,000 7% 7t(% % 1,000,000 i & A%
0.1BITHIMRMD) ©

R2010F 12208 A QX & E M
Data Champion Limited 23 & 3174
50,000 R ABRSIVEB B R - 1ER
[\ Bl 44 A% 3R U B Good Destination [
Goldnet BVIZZ EBTIRAMNAK(E -
RE B XA A E MData Champion
Limited it 3 K& 3174 #£ 49,960 IR A B&
TIER R AR - YERMAI R R Rk &
+ U B& Powerwell Pacific & #F 2 317
RAMRE -

RIBFRRN2010F 12228 NEMA
R R FE T R 58 91 999,000,000 %
f&1n + AR A AYAE AR AN B 100,000
7% Jt(9 /41,000,000 1 & B0.178 7T
B A% 17 ) 1 Z= 100,000,000 TT(5 A
1,000,000,000 8 & f%0.17% T & AR
%) e

RIFEREN2010F12 22 E®E
REBER EARFRGBEEERENT
X (f) BT 2 it K2 57 5E B B & T ER A5 AR
KBS T + 1% E A+ &% 10,790,000 %
TLERER  WEAZSBIRAEMNR
107,900,000 A& B {5 + LABC 3% 23817 T
RARIRE(NERE]) e EAXR{LE + K
A RHE BT IR A # 510,800,000 7
7t (% /A 108,000,000 f% &% 0.1 78 LK)
B1n) o

M 2011418268 42,000,000 f%
NABFREMEOABITHNHBRMNE R
BROSELEBREEHITTFARAL
([BRE]) - EXL RELER - AARIA
21T AN # & 15,000,000 7T (2 A
150,000,000 f& &% 0.1 B TAI AR S) -
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29. f#fE
g

29. Reserves
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

AEBRAFERBEFENFESR

therein for the current and prior years are presented in REBHRGEEREHRES - &
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Nature HBHEMT

of the reserves are as follows:

(a) Capital reserve (a) EHEXfEE

Capital reserve represents the difference between BAFEE S KB ISP

the consideration paid and the share of the net R (E B FE 1h P Uk B8 5 B E (%

assets acquired (at book value) in respect of the BREER) 2HE A EE - K2010

acquisition of non-controlling interests. Capital FI12ANAMNERFEERB K

reserve as at 31 December 2010 arose from the 88 Display & Packaging Limited

acquisition of 33.3% equity interests in Display & 33.3% A em - W RERER

Packaging Limited, the acquisition of 20% equity RN A 20% IR A1 2 K OB A 1

interests in EC Manufacturing Limited and the BE (M ERAR 10% BAERS

acquisition of the 10% equity interests in Ampress (RMizE24H) -

Packaging Asia Limited as mentioned in note 2.

(b) Merger reserve (b) BOEE

Merger reserve arose as a result of the followings: BHHREEBETIRE T SEmMELE

(i) Before 20 September 2010, the Group held (i) F2010F9H20HGAT » K&
90% of the equity interest of Richmind while B EE Z90%M i - mik
the remaining 10% interest in the capital of M8 & 10,0008 TTH & 7= &4
Richmind with carrying value of HK$10,000 T 10% # %= Bl F1 &l 24 A% 3R 55
held by the Founding Shareholders was £ ARANEETE - WETA
accounted for as capital contribution and BHHEEE -
included in the merger reserve.

(iiy During the current year, Powerwell Pacific (iiy MARFE - Powerwell Pacific
issued 752 new shares of US$1 each to the BN EER 1 ETmAIER
Founding Shareholders at the consideration RE/T7T52IRERMEME 1%
of US$1 each and issued 44 new shares of BIETRR 10+ DA R (A ak 2 & 8%
US$1 each to Ms. Tam at a consideration T44R G R EBE 1T
of HK$1,027,000. These has resulted in & % - & &1,027,000 7%
an increase in equity of the Group by Lo BITSAEE 2 #Em1g
HK$1,033,000 which was included in merger 501,083,000 7T * £FEE 5T
reserve. NG BHEE -

(c) Translation reserve (c) HERE

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted in note 4.18.

BEREBREMARENE4 180
RSB RMEAEBINRTE
EHEN ZRE
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29.

30.

Pacific

Reserves (Continued)
Company

The movements in the Company’s reserves are as
follows:

Contribution

29.

Proposed

s ()
eI
ARTOBREEBIT -

Retained

surplus* final dividend profits* Total
BH&Es ZERREARE REBRR * et
HK$°’000 HK$°’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FE FEx FEx FE
At the date of incorporation R sEfAKIZ B
HA — — — —
Acquisition of subsidiaries/ UWIEHIEB A
Transaction with owners S EEA A
X5 30,357 — — 30,357
Profit for the period/Total ~ FR%H
comprehensive income HA2H
for the period NG — — 3,000 3,000
2010 final dividend 2010 FF sk
proposed (note 12) REARR B
(Hiat 12) — 3,000 (3,000) —
At 31 December 2010 20104
12H31H 30,357 3,000 — 33,357

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the costs of investment in subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation effected on 20
December 2010 as detailed in note 2 over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company in exchange.

& The total of these balances represented “Other
reserves” in the statement of financial position.

Business Combination

On 1 February 2010, Goldnet HK acquired from two
parties the entire registered capital of Tianhaiba at a
cash consideration of RMB1,000,000 (the “Acquisition”);
one of the parties is Mr Yang Yijun who is a director of
the Company. Tianhaiba was established on 23 June
2009 by the two parties as a PRC domestic enterprise
with paid-up registered capital of RMB1,000,000. As at
the date of the Acquisition, Tianhaiba was engaged in
trading of watches.

30.

KRR EHEGTIIBRE B 2010F 12
A20B &M EAK T4 ) FTiE
BB AR MR E AR H AR R TR
RN A (ERZE -

O OWEEBRONERRT IR RE
[ EAb ] -

ES SN

MR2010F2A1H  €EHEFBUBESAR
B AR % 1,000,000 7T [ M % A T U B
XEF2BEFMEAN(TWESIE])  H
F—BZALTARRAIESEH —FhE-
KETFIIHZR A A LR 200946 A 23
B AFBEERLE  BREMER
B AR 1,000,000 c RREEEE
B REFNEEREHER -
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30. Business Combination (Continued) 30.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Tianhaiba as at the date of the Acquisition and the
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the
Acquisition are as follows:

Annual Report 2010 £ R

EBREot(E)
REBERARREENARMNEER
BEAFERERKBEHANARMR
EEMT :

Carrying
amount Fair value
BREE ATE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE A& 13 13
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H AN FIA 39 39
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTAE R 1,238 1,238
Other assets HEMEE 14 14
Payables and accruals FERTFIB R FEETE R (892) (392)
Net assets acquired BEFEE 912 912
Goodwill (note 16) BRI 230
Purchase consideration BERE 1,142
Purchase consideration is satisfied by: BEARENZAFAR
Cash B 1,142
Net cash inflow arising on the Acquisition: ~ WEEEEAKNFEELSRA
Cash consideration ReERE (1,142)
Bank balances and cash acquired BUWERITEH LIRS 1,238
96

The Acquisition of Tianhaiba is for the development of the
Group’s retail business of watches in the PRC and the
goodwill arising from the Acquisition is attributable to the
knowledge and experience of Tianhaiba’'s management
which is valuable to the development and expansion of
the PRC Watch Business. After the Acquisition, the Group
has started the selling of watches under Tianba and
Harpo brands in the PRC with the necessary permission.
Revenue generated by Tianhaiba since the date of
its Acquisition up to 31 December 2010 amounted
to HK$7,907,000 and it incurred operating losses of
HK$6,961,000 during that period. Had the Acquisition
taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
would have been HK$208,195,000 and HK$7,852,000
respectively. The cost of the Acquisition is immaterial.

ETWEXREFEEEEEERASEN
REREGREEER MEESTEEAN
EERAASHEEEBYUPRERER
BREETNEENSERES - WESE
HiE - AEBEDBHMEHHA  AHARE
HEEXFRFHFREEKE - REFE
W B £ 18 H H#£ 22010612 A 31 H
1FE £ B WA A7,907,000%8 T 0 I
Rz HE R &5 & & E H6,961,000
B WMKEBEERFENET - AR
EERAFEMRA GG DR A
208,195,000 Jt % 7,852,000 78 7T ° U
BEHMKATENRK °
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31. Related Party Transactions 31. BBALRS
(i) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial () BRAMBBRREMBOABEES

statements, during the year, the Group carried out
the following transactions with its related parties:

Nature of transactions

REZHE
Hana Time (Asia) Limited (note (a)) Sales of goods
ErR (M) BRAB (AT (a)) HEEm
(Shenzhen Guifeng Watch Company Sub-letting of factory
Limited)(“Guifeng”) (note (b)) DEBE
RYITHEEREGRAR([HEE]) Assembly of watches
(K17 (b)) SEERAR R
Notes:

(a) Hana Time (Asia) Limited was 75% held by a close
family member of Mr. Lam Chi Wai, Peter, a director
of the Company. The Group has discontinued the
transactions with Hana Time (Asia) Limited since
April 2010.

(b)  Guifeng is 10% owned by Mr. Yang Yijun, a director
of the Company, and 80% owned by his close family
member.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above related parties transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary course of business.

RES | EEEC VS
RS

For the year ended
31 December
BE12A31BLFE

2010 2009
2010 £ 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
481 1,721

67 —

6,619 5,987

BifsE

(a) E=B(EM)BRAABARF
BENEELEE—REBHRER
G BEHETS%  REEE A
2010F 4 A B4R |E B ZERE(ZaM)
BRAREITRS -

(b) HEAARRESRL FEXRLEHE
BH10%  ME—REBRIKEKE
AI%EH 80% °

ARREZRA - LB A LR
SN ARRGBREPETRIRE
FREEGIETT ©
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31. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(i)

Compensation of key management personnel
Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation (including
directors), the details of which are as follows:

REES BT
BRI R A

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

32. Major Non-cash Transactions

(a)

(b)

Disposal of office equipment

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group disposed of office equipment with carrying
amount of HK$49,000, which were held under
finance lease, to the lessor at a consideration of
HK$62,000. The consideration was offset against
the outstanding amount of finance lease liability of
HK$62,000.

Acquisition of other intangible assets

As detailed in note 17, the Group acquired other
intangible assets from a PRC entity at a total
consideration of RMB4,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,345,000). During the vyear,
the Group paid a total sum of RMB2,092,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,379,000) while
the outstanding consideration of RMB2,608,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,966,000) is
included as “Other payables and accruals” as
mentioned in note 25(b).

Annual Report 2010 £ %%

31. MELRS (&)

(i)

TEEBEABNEE
BERIBEXAFAFTEEEASR
(BREF)NHE BHFBEN
T

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLELEE

2010 2009
2010 £ 2009
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
3,027 3,450

89 86

3,116 3,536

32. FEFRERH

(a)

(b)

HERDASRE
HZE2009F 12 A1 HIEFEE » &
EERREAALEURERE
¥ B BR [ {8 /& 49,0007 7T 8 i &
=R KRB AE62,000% T £
BEEEAEENEHERAGESHE
62,0008 T EH ©

WEHMEFEE

BN 7R AEEE
M—XPEEREALERBARE
4,700,000 7T (#8 & 7 495,345,000
BLTIWEBEEMEREE F
A AEEBEIN—FEHEAR
#2092,0007C B X B(HE & K
472,379,000 L) * MAEER
B AR#2608,000T(HHERD
2,966,000/ 7T ) JTh 5T A M 3% 25(b)
ﬁﬁj@ﬁ’a(ﬁ@ﬂ’s&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁr%
)EH °
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33.

34.

Pacific

Operating Lease Commitments

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease in respect of land and buildings are as
follows:

—&FRN
MERFA

Within one year
Within two and five years

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to
four years, with options to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or other dates as mutually agreed between
the Group and the respective landlords. None of these
leases includes any contingent rentals.

Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks
which result from the use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations. The financial risks
include market risk (mainly foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the notes
below. The Group’s overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is carried
out by key management under the policies approved
by the directors. The Group does not have written risk
management policies. However, the directors and senior
management of the Group meet regularly to identify and
evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to manage
financial risks on timely and effective manner. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are
set out below.

33.

34.

REHNEIE
RAE A AT HE S 2 A Bt + M RAZF e
NHARRKERSAT :
Group
AEE
2010 2009
2010 2009 F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
392 236
618 31
1,010 267

AEBERBEELHOERETYE - %
FHAOMNE /P —EMF - I AR EH]
AR AEEAAEETERBENHE
gaﬁﬂ%fé%ﬁ - MEBO BB EMKAR

TRl EE
AEERREAEXRFAETERS R
TAMARZESREAR - 2 BERE
B 5 R e (2 R 9N LB Ko A = &
) EERRERBESRER - AHD
BMTANFBRATHERRE - KE
BOEERREEETRERTHENT
AR RO RES AN EEFE R
MEBETNTZE RREEHTRERE
EREEFHENBRET AKEL
BEERMBREERER - T8 AKEE
EREREIEEE IS E ARSI KA E
2 B LA % 1 E SR DA % B e A8 2 3R
TRER - BzFTR T AMEENER
RASBERAARKSBRERABRE
BIENR e




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited & AT ¥ EEERAT Annual Report 2010 F R 92
S aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaamaaae

34. SRIEKMERE)
SREERAGEER
REB K AR BRRE B B0 Bk
NEERNEMEERBENERE
ManEN N EEem T ENDEN
MFEREBTENHRE  BFL2EM T
49 411%412):

34. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities recognised in the
statements of financial position at the reporting date may
also be categorised as follows (see notes 4.9, 4.11 and
4.12 for explanations on how the category of financial

instruments affects their subsequent measurement):

Group Company
rEE b /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 2009 4 2010 £ 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET FRET FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: ER R EWGRIE
— Trade receivables — Z B REWFIAE 24,575 20,031 — —
— Amounts due from related ~ — FEUSEIEE A+
parties RIE — 547 — —
— Dividend receivable — B E — — 3,000 —
— Amounts due from — BB A A
subsidiaries I8 — — 660 —
— Bank balances and cash — RITEBREIRS 28,262 15,215 — —
52,837 35,793 3,660 —
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTABRERN
through profit or loss TREE
— Designated — ¥BE — 13,983 — —
— Derivative financial — BEEBEMITE
instruments held for SRT A
trading — 22 — —
— 14,005 — —
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at bieg: i) nWINED)
amortised cost: SHEE:
— Trade and other — B 5 NhEAMERS
payables HIB 52,362 17,562 660 —
— Dividend payables — ERIRE — 250 — —
— Bank loans — RITER — 676 — —
52,362 18,488 660 —
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34.

Pacific

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from its overseas sales,
which are primarily denominated in US$ which are not the
functional currency of the Company and other operating
group entities. Since HK$ is linked to US$, the directors
consider that the Group’s exposure on currency risk is
not significant.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

During the last financial year, the Group was also
exposed to exchange risk arising from its investments in
dual currency contracts (see note 22) and forward foreign
exchange contracts (see note 23). The dual currency
contracts were subject to fluctuation in exchange rate
of the primary and the alternative currencies underlying
each contract. The cash flow effect in respect of the
contracts was affected by the exchange rate of the
primary and the alternative currencies prevailing on the
redemption date. The forward foreign exchange contracts
were subject to fluctuation in exchange rates of the
currencies underlying each contract.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s profit for the year and other components of
equity at the reporting date due to a possible change
in the underlying exchange rate of each of the dual
currency contracts and forward contracts, with effect
from the beginning of the year.

34.

Increase/(Decrease) in profit for the year FRZEFIRREHF
and retained profits i, D)

The CAD contracts mTas

+10% +10%

-10% -10%

The US$ contract ETLEH

+10% +10%

-10% ~10%

TEE R EE(E)

SN E B
E¥RERESRIANRFEIARKR
T A E X B B KB EER - AKE
N R R R B HFIMNEE » ERUE
JLRHE - MRTTIWIEAR A A o B 48 &
SEEEBMNNEEE  ARBITEXT
i EEARAEEAZNEERAR
WAERK °

A6 B3R B U S SN SRR o 1B -
BEEESEFINERR  AKERBRE
HERE I EAINE R -

RE—RFEASETEAERETE
KaEK (BT 22) REEINES K (RH
it 23) IR E MARIMNER R - BT al
BHREANEBNEIEZREMEEN
EXRBATE SEONRSRTE
XRERARRITHEEREMERE
RFEE -  MEINEANITAHIEMH
MERERRBARE -

TRIFEFNE  AKRERAFERN
B RN wE B S IR T EMIER
BETERSHORMESOHEBEXR
REEPNHRE -

2010 2009
2010 £ 2009
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
— 1,010
— (1,010)
— 391
— (391)




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited ZIE AP FEBEERADT

34.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The assumed changes in exchange rates are considered
to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rates over the next twelve month period.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
which are arranged at floating interest rates. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise. The
interest rate and repayment terms of the secured bank
loan outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed in
note 27.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s profit for the year, and other components of
equity at the reporting date due to a possible change in
interest rates on its floating rate bank borrowings with all
other variables held constant at the end of each reporting
period (in practice, the actual trading results may differ
from the sensitivity analysis below and the difference
could be material):

Increase/(Decrease) in profit for the year
and retained profits

Increase/(Decrease) in basis points (“bp”)
+50 bp
-50 bp

+50 F 2
—50 &2,

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on the
assumption that the borrowings as at reporting dates
existed throughout the whole respective financial year.

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered
to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the next twelve month period.
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34.

Pacific

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations and from its
investing activities. The Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk on recognised financial assets is limited to the
carrying amount of these financial assets at the reporting
date.

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

Credit risk on liquid funds and financial instruments is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

As at 31 December 2010, approximately 44% (2009:
66%) and 50% (2009: 76%) of the trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively. The Group has been
actively seeking new customers to reduce the risk of
over-reliance on those customers. Please refer to note 20
for further details of the Group’s exposures to credit risk
on trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and considered by the directors to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

34.

TEE R EE(E)

FERR
EERBESH I AN FHRERET
SRTAGRATHEELEHAEE
SXPBBRANER - AEBZEER
REIBREREBEEKBRETAER
REGEERHEKRELRY AEEEMHE
REMEENRAEERBREE - JINU
ZEeMEENRE B HNREERR -

AEENBRSREGEHARENETFT
Ry nEEREEERR AEEE
BEEEHEEERR  YRKEKEER
BEEEERSE HREERETHEME
EIZF - ARERBLIRE BB BET -

HREFTR/AMBRT BRBEER
TRTANEERRAR -

AEERBEFE—HEREERR
MARBRITHEREREAEENE
B =B R BRI ABKF o

MR2010F12A31H "EE B 5 &
W T I8 4944% (2009 4F : 66%) K 50%
(2009 : 76%) 7 Rl BEWAEEHK KA
EERARBRFRIE - AEE—FHEKR
EMTEFPUREKEZERFNBS K
B FEAEBRYHE S EKRFIEEER
BRHIFENS B A MIFE20 ©

RBE £ EE

mEE SRR TR EERERITNR
TEAE—EREERENSRBERRA
BEENRRER AKEESESZESRE
NHRBERBITREAEITAARERS
MEEETEAERDECER - A%
B ERSHERREEKTHRBEE
EBBRACEARES  MEARHAR
RMESHE -

AEEREHBEA-—BELRDES
BE  MAEBBRRITEESBERK R
B RBRRHIRIEBKE o




Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited & AT ¥ EEERAT Annual Report 2010 F R 96
S aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaamaaae

34. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 34. SHREAMEIEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELER(E)
Analysed below is the Group’s and the Company’s TRETRAEE KA QTR 2009 4F 12
remaining contractual maturities for its financial liabilities A31BX&2010F12 A1 BEaE
as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010. When MHBTEHNFEHRLINT - EERAGEE
the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled, BEZAER AEENAEETRE
the liability is included on the basis of the earliest date KEENREEHAKR - E0HEES
on when the Group and the Company can be required to EBER - SRS TASEE KRR A
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments, X T 8 A R ERRE o

each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in
which the Group and the Company is committed to pay.

Group
At 31 December 2010
2010124317
Total
un-
On Within In two to After five  discounted Carrying
demand one year five years years amount amount
RERE —FR —EME WELE  AURLHE EHE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FET FET FAT FET FAT
Trade and other BORAM
payables [ERZE — 52,362 - - 52,362 52,362
At 31 December 2009
120094612 A31H
Total
un-
On Within Intwo to After five  discounted Carrying
demand one year five years years amount amount
RELH —E£R —EfF MERE  REREE FHE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET ~ FET AT FET  TET  FEL
Trade and other BoRAM
payables JEf50E — 17,562 — — 17,562 17,562
Dividend payables ERRE 250 — — — 250 250
Bank loans RITER - 88 281 417 786 676
250 17,650 281 47 18,598 18,488
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34. SRIAREEE)
FREESER(E)
AATF

At 31 December 2010
R2010512 8318

34. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Company

Total

un-
Within In two to After five  discounted Carrying
one year five years years amount amount
e —EMEF RERE  AURLHE REE
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE FET FET T FET

Trade and other B RAM
payables IR - 660 - - 660 660
At 31 December 2009
720094612 A31H

Total

un-
On Within In two to After five  discounted Carrying
demand one year five years years amount amount
REXE —£R —EWEF MEDFE  AERLR REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Trade and other B RAM
payables IR — — — — — —
35. Fair Value Measurements 35. AV EFE

The fair values of the Group’s current financial assets and
liabilities at amortised cost are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate
or short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The
fair value of the non-current financial liabilities closely
approximates its carrying amount.

The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments which
is effective from 1 January 2009. These amendments
introduce a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures and additional disclosures
about the relative reliability of fair value measurements.

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability
of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

AEBZRBHEKANRBEREERA
BEVFFEXNRBEEREE RESZS
TR TETIENE s MAEIH - 357
TRAENAFEREREERS

AEBERMAB2009F1 A1HEERY
BRI EHEERE 7B T ARE
A JOERT » WEERTSIA—EE R
NFEFERBEN="ERE  LAEHRLQ
FEFFENES A EEELBIMNIE -

TR2JIREBEAFERERMBARRAR
BAPEFENGREERAR - ZR
BREFEZSEREENBENATF
BEMERNTIERM ABEBNRETEN
HemEENBBIIR=ZEBR - A
FERBDR/UTEE :

— HF1&: HREERABNERT
S RE CRIEHE) -
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35. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 35. AV EFEE)
— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included — Fog:HEEXEBEMEEHE

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.

The Group did not have any financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value as at the reporting
date. As at 31 December 2009, the financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

Financial assets SREE
Dual currency investments HEITEEIRE
Forward foreign exchange HEINEE A

contracts

There have been no significant transfers between level 1
and 2 in the reporting period.

Where derivatives are traded either on exchanges
or liquid over-the-counter markets, the Group uses
the closing price at the reporting date. Normally, the
derivatives entered into by the Group are not traded on
active markets. The fair values of such contracts are
estimated using a valuation technique that maximizes the
use of observable market inputs e.g. market currency
and interest rates (Level 2). Valuation techniques mainly
include forward pricing and swap models using present
value calculations and other discounted cash flow
calculations.

1% ) 2k 53 (B B A% #E 0T ) AT B 52
MBAE(TERESE 1 BMEEN®
B &

—  H34: WHREAIBEDSEE
MEMEEXABNE ABEENI
BRBAE) -

—HeMEEXRBEEBEIBNDF
BERBANER BERHRFEAE
AEEARERNHERBAE -

RMEBE  AEETETEIEAFE
FENemEENREE - HN20094F 12
A318  REBHKARZAFETEN
SRHMEENABEAKATFEEEND
m\unw

At 31 December 2009
R 20094 12 31 H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F1E FoE E3E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEITL FET FEIT
— 13,983 —

RBERE > FIEEE2EZELES
RER -

HWOTE T AR ZRERBEINNEE
B AKESEAREBBHOKRTE-
—MREFH - AEBITUNITESTAY
BESEMESEER -BAHEAHNATE
N—ERERABEREmSHE AB0MH
508 R R AR ) AL A E R R
(F2) - BEFEZEIEZERERARE
AERAEMTRRSREAENNETE
BREHER -
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36.

37.

Pacific

Capital Management 36.
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in

the Group will be able to continue as a going concern,

and to provide an adequate return to shareholders

through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during

the current and prior years.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
its overall financing structure. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as
follows:

Bank loans RITER
Equity &
Gearing ratio =F{sa:

The Group targets to maintain the Group’s gearing ratio
at a healthy level.

Subsequent Events 37.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, there are no other material events
subsequent to 31 December 2010.

EXREE

AEBEEEESN  UEARASENE
Bus@Egs  ANEZELCEEER
Al SERREHFERER - AEE
MEBRBRERAFERBEFEERTT

“=4

AEBRAGNBERMIERBEFTERN
TR AKRERELERNE S NAARA
BEMNRBER BEEARBAEL
HE - BRERAFARBREARE  A5HE
ARERABRN FPRROKRSSHE RO
BEATRE  BOHROHALEEER

K& BMNAELERDT

2009
2009
HK$'000
FET

HK$°000
FET

— 676
36,815

— 1.8%

AEENERERERRBENRBELE -
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